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Notice is hereby given that the 42" Annual General Meeting of the Members of Triton Valves
Limited will be held on Thursday, July 26, 2018, at 4:00 p.m. at The Gateway Hotel, Residency Road,
Bengaluru — 560 025, Karnataka, India to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS
Item No. 1 - Adoption of Financial Statements

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements i.e. Balance Sheet as at March 31,
2018 and the Statement of Profit & Loss and the Cash Flow Statement for the financial year ended
as on March 31, 2018 and the Reports of the Directors including Secretarial Audit Report and of the
Auditors thereon.

Item No. 2 - Declaration of Dividend

To declare a dividend of 15/- per Equity Share of ¥10/- each (150%) for the financial year ended March
31, 2018.

Item No. 3 - Retirement of Director by rotation

To appoint a Director in place of Mrs. Anuradha M. Gokarn (DIN: 00185509) who retires by rotation
and being eligible, offers herself for reappointment.

Item No. 4 — Ratification of Appointment of Statutory Auditors
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Rules made thereunder, and pursuant to the recommendation of the Audit Committee and the Board
of Directors and pursuant to the members at the Forty First Annual General Meeting, the Company
hereby ratifies the appointment of Messrs Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP, Chartered Accountants,
Bangalore (Firm Registration No: 117366W/W-100018) as Auditors of the Company to hold office
until the conclusion of the Forty third Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in 2019,
at a remuneration to be determined by the Board of Directors as may be recommended by the Audit
Committee in consultation with the Auditors.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS
Item No. 5 — Appointment of Mr. Prashanth Nayak (DIN 03371824 ) as Director

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:
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“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 152, 161 and any other applicable provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made there under (including any statutory modification(s)
or re-enactment thereof) and the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Prashanth Nayak (DIN
03371824), who was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company by the Board of Directors
at its meeting held on May 4, 2018 in terms of Section 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and holds
office till the date of this Annual General Meeting and in respect of whom the Company has received
a notice in writing pursuant to Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 from a member proposing his
candidature for the office of Director, be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company.”

Item No. 6 — Appointment of Mr. Prashanth Nayak (DIN 03371824 ) as Independent Director
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149 and 152 read with Schedule IV and any
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder (including any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the Articles of Association of the Company, as
may be in force from time to time, Mr. Prashanth Nayak (DIN 03371824), Director of the Company be
and is hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the Company to hold office for a period of five
(5) consecutive years with effect from May 4, 2018, not liable to retire by rotation.”

Item No. 7 — Increase in Borrowings Powers of the Company
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following Resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT in supersession of any earlier resolutions passed and in terms of Section 180(1)
(c) and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the relevant Rules
thereof (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force),
the consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company
including any Committee thereof (hereinafter referred to as “the Board") to borrow from time to time in
one or more tranches, any sum or sums of money which, together with the monies already borrowed by
the Company (apart from temporary loans obtained/to be obtained from the Bankers of the Company
in the ordinary course of business) may exceed the aggregate of the paid up capital of the Company
and its free reserves provided that the total amount so borrowed shall not at any time exceed 3200
Crores over and above the paid up capital of the Company and its free reserves.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to negotiate with the lending
entities and to finalize and execute the documents and deeds as may be applicable for creating the
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appropriate mortgages and/or charges on such of the immoveable and/or moveable properties of the
Company on such terms and conditions as may be decided by the Board and to perform all such acts,
deeds and things as may be necessary in this regard.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this Resolution, the Board be and is
hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things and to give such directions as may
be necessary or expedient and to settle any question, difficulty or doubt that may arise in this regard
as the Board in its absolute discretion may deem necessary or desirable and its decision shall be final
and binding."

Item No. 8 — Remuneration to Cost Auditors
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act") and other applicable
provisions of the Act read with the relevant Rules thereunder, (including any statutory modification(s)
or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded
to the payment of remuneration of ¥1,00,000/- (Rupees One lakh only) plus applicable taxes and
reimbursement of out of pocket expenses to Messrs Rao, Murthy and Associates, Cost Accountants,
(Firm Registration No. 000065) appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company to conduct the
audit of cost records of the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2018."

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Triton Valves Limited

Apoorva G
Company Secretary
Membership: A32683
Date: May 4, 2018
Regd. Office:
Triton Valves Limited
Sunrise Chambers, 22, Ulsoor Road
Bengaluru — 560 042
CIN: L25119KA1975PLC002867
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NOTES:

10.

Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 is annexed hereto.

A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ALSO ENTITLED TO APPOINT
A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING INSTEAD OF HIMSELF / HERSELF, AND THE
PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY.

The instrument appointing the proxy, duly completed must be deposited at the Registered Office
of the Company not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.

A person can act as proxy on behalf of Members not exceeding fifty in number and holding in the
aggregate not more than 10% of the total Share Capital of the Company carrying voting rights.
However, a member holding more than 10% of the total Share Capital of the Company carrying
voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as proxy for
any other person or Shareholder.

Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the Meeting
are requested to send a certified copy of the Board Resolution authorizing their representative
to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting.

A member shall be entitled, during the period beginning 24 hours before the time fixed for the
commencement of the Meeting and ending with the conclusion of the Meeting, to inspect the
proxies lodged at any time during the business hours of the Company, provided that not less
than ‘three days' of notice in writing is given to the Company.

Members/proxies should bring the duly filled Attendance Slip enclosed herewith to attend the
Meeting.

The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from
July 19, 2018 to July 26, 2018 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of payment of dividend and
the 42"¢ AGM of the Company.

Register of Members shall be available for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company
during office hours on all working days between 11.00 a.m. and 1.00 p.m.

Subject to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, dividend as recommended by the Board of
Directors, if declared at the AGM will be paid within 30 days from the date of declaration to those
Members whose names appear on the Register of Members as on July 18, 2018. In respect
of Shares held in dematerialized form, the dividend will be paid on the basis of particulars of
beneficial ownership furnished by the Depositories as on that date.
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Members who wish to claim dividends, which have remained unclaimed, are requested to either
correspond with the Corporate Secretarial Department at the Company's Registered Office or the
Company's Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, Canbank Computer Services Limited, 218, J.P.
Royale, 1st Floor, 2nd Main, Near 14th Cross, Sampige Road, Malleswaram, Banglore-560 003.

Members are requested to note that dividends remaining unpaid or unclaimed for a period
of seven years from the date they became due for payment will, as per Section 125(5) read
with Section 469 of the Companies Act, 2013, be transferred to the Investors Education and
Protection Fund. The Company has transferred the unclaimed dividend up to the Financial Year
ended March 31, 2010 to the Fund.

After completion of seven years as aforesaid, no claims shall stand against the Investors
Education and Protection Fund or the Company for the amounts of dividend so transferred nor
shall any payment be made in respect of such claims.

Members are requested to update their email address with their depository participant to ensure
that the Annual Report and other documents reach on their preferred email account.

Members holding shares in physical form are requested to consider converting their holdings
to dematerialized form to eliminate all risks associated with physical shares and for ease of
portfolio management. Members can contact the Company or RTA for assistance in this regard.

Members may also note that the Notice of the 42" AGM and the Annual Report 2018 will be
available on the Company's website at www.tritonvalves.com. The physical copies of the
aforesaid documents will also be available at the Company's Registered Office for inspection
during normal business hours on working days. Members who require communication in physical
form in addition to e-communication, or have any other queries, may write to the Company at:

investors@tritonvalves.com

Additional information pursuant to Regulation 36 of Securities and Exchange Board of India
(SEBI) (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial
Standard — 2 in respect of the Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at the AGM is
furnished in the Annexure and forms part of the Notice.

SEBI has mandated the submission of the Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant
in the securities market. Members holding Shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to
submit their PAN to their Depository Participant(s). Members holding Shares in physical form
shall submit their PAN details to the Company.
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19. Information and other instructions relating to e-voting are as follows:

In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule
20 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended by the
Companies (Management and Administration) Amendment Rules, 2015 and Regulation 44
of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, the Company is pleased to provide Members facility to exercise their
right to vote on Resolutions proposed to be considered at the Annual General Meeting
by electronic means and the business may be transacted through e-Voting Services. The
facility of casting the votes by the Members using an electronic voting system from a place
other than venue of the AGM (“remote e-voting”) will be provided by National Securities
Depository Limited (NSDL).

The facility for voting through ballot paper shall be made available at the venue of the
Annual General Meeting and the Members attending the Meeting who have not cast their
vote by remote e-voting shall be able to exercise their right at the Meeting through ballot

paper.

The Members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may also
attend the AGM but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again.

The remote e-voting period commences on, Monday, July 23, 2018 (9:00 am) and ends on
Wednesday, July 25, 2018 (5:00 pm). During this period Members of the Company, holding
shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date of July 18,
2018, may cast their vote by remote e-voting. Remote e-voting module shall be disabled
by NSDL for voting thereafter. Once the vote on a Resolution is cast by the Member, the
Member shall not be allowed to change it subsequently.

The process and manner for remote e-voting are as under:

Step 1: Log-in to NSDL e-Voting system at https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/

Step 2 : Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system.

Details on Step 1 is mentioned below:

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?

1.  Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.
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Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login" which
is available under ‘Shareholders' section.

A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password and a
Verification Code as shown on the screen.

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at
https.//eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL
eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed
to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically.

Your User ID details are given below :

Manner of holding shares
i.e. Demat (NSDL or CDSL) or
Physical

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID
For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID
is 12#x*x+x then your user ID is IN300*#**7 2#x#x*x,

a) For Members who hold
shares in demat account with
NSDL.

Your User ID is:

b) For Members who hold
shares in demat account with
CDSL.

16 Digit Beneficiary ID
ForexampleifyourBeneficiaryIDis12#xxkxkxsxsxx
then your user |D iS ]2**************

c) For Members holding shares
in Physical Form.

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered
with the company

For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is
108496 then user ID is 108496007 ***

Your password details are given below:

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing
password to login and cast your vote.

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve
the ‘initial password' which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your
‘initial password'’, you need to enter the ‘initial password' and the system will

force you to change your password.

c) How to retrieve your 'initial password'?
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If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your
‘initial password' is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent
to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment
i.e. a.pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit
client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio
number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID' and
your ‘initial password'.

If your email ID is not registered, your ‘initial password' is communicated to you
on your postal address.

If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password" or have

forgotten your password:

a)

b)

c)

Click on "Forgot User Details/Password?"(If you are holding shares in your demat
account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

Physical User Reset Password?" (If you are holding shares in physical mode)
option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send
a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio
number, your PAN,your name and your registered address.

After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions" by selecting on
the check box.

Now, you will have to click on “Login" button.

After you click on the “Login" button, Home page of e-Voting will open.

Details on Step 2 is given below:

How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system?

1.

After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see the Home page of e-Voting.
Click on e-Voting. Then, click on Active Voting Cycles.

After click on Active Voting Cycles, you will be able to see all the companies "EVEN" in
which you are holding shares and whose voting cycle is in active status.

Select “"EVEN" of company for which you wish to cast your vote.
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4.  Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

5. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify
the number of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit" and
also “Confirm" when prompted.

6. Upon confirmation, the message "Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.

7. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option
on the confirmation page.

8.  Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your
vote.

General Guidelines for shareholders

1 Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to
send scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/Authority
letter etc. with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who
are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to parameshwar@vijkt.in with a
copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in.

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and
take utmost care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website
will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In
such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?" or
“Physical User Reset Password?" option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset
the password.

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for
Shareholders and e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download
section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 1800-222-990 or send a
request at evoting@nsdl.co.in.

The voting rights of Members shall be in proportion to their Shares of the paid up Equity
Share Capital of the Company as on the cut-off date of July 18, 2018.

Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and becomes Member of the Company
after dispatch of the notice and holding shares as of the cut-off date i.e. July 18, 2018,
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may obtain the login ID and password by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or ravi@
ccsl.co.in or canbankrta@ccsl.co.in. However, if you are already registered with NSDL for
remote e-voting then you can use your existing user ID and password for casting your
vote. If you have forgotten your password, you can reset your password by using “Forgot
User Details/Password" option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com or contact NSDL at the
following toll free no.: 1800-222-990.

A Member may participate in the AGM even after exercising his right to vote through remote
e-voting but shall not be allowed to vote again at the AGM.

A person, whose name is recorded in the Register of Members or in the Register of beneficial
owners maintained by the depositories as on the cut-off date only shall be entitled to avail
the facility of remote e-voting as well as voting at the AGM through ballot paper.

Mr. Parameshwar G. Bhat, a Practising Company Secretary (Membership No. FCS-8860),
Bengaluru, has been appointed as the Scrutinizer for providing facility to the Members of
the Company to scrutinize the voting and remote e-voting process in a fair and transparent
manner.

Chairman shall, at the AGM, at the end of discussion on the Resolutions on which voting
is to be held, allow voting with the assistance of Scrutinizer, by use of “Ballot Paper" for all
those Members who are present at the AGM but have not cast their votes by availing the
remote e-voting facility.

After the conclusion of voting at the General Meeting, the Scrutinizer shall first count the
votes cast at the Meeting and thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting
in the presence of at least two witnesses not in the employment of the Company and shall
make, not later than 48 hours of the conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated Scrutinizer's
Report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman or a person
authorized by him in writing, who shall countersign the same and declare the result of the
voting forthwith.

The Results declared along with the report of the Scrutinizer shall be placed on the website
of the Company at www.tritonvalves.com and on the website of NSDL immediately after
the declaration of result by the Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing. The
results shall also be immediately forwarded to the BSE Limited, Mumbai.

10
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
Item Nos. 5 &6

Mr. Prashanth Nayak (DIN 03371824) was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company by the
Board of Directors with effect from May 4, 2018 pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013,
read with the Articles of Association of the Company.

The two Resolutions seek the approval of the Shareholders for regularizing the appointment of Mr.
Prashanth Nayak, as a Director and also appointment as an Independent Director of the Company to
hold office for a period of five (5) consecutive years with effect from May 4, 2018 pursuant to Section
149 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and the Rules made there under. He
is not liable to retire by rotation. The Company has received a notice in writing from a member along
with a deposit of requisite amount under Section 160 of the Act proposing the candidature of Mr.
Prashanth Nayak for the office of Director of the Company.

The Company has received from Mr. Prashanth Nayak (i) consent in writing to act as Director in Form
DIR-2 pursuant to Rule 8 of the Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules 2014, (ii)
intimation in Form DIR-8 in terms of the Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules,
2014, to the effect that he is not disqualified under sub-section (2) of Section 164 of the Companies
Act, 2013, and confirming his eligibility for such appointment and (iii) a declaration to the effect
that he meets the criteria of independence as provided under sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Prashanth Nayak, fulfils the conditions for his appointment as an
Independent Director as specified under the Act and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. Mr. Nayak is independent of the Management. The terms and
conditions would be available for inspection without any fee by the members at the Registered Office
of the Company during normal business hours on any working day upto the date of the AGM.

Brief profile of Mr. Prashanth Nayak is furnished below:

Mr. Prashanth Nayak is the CEO of Yazaki India Private Limited which is part of the 15 billion dollar
Yazaki Corporation headquartered in Japan. Prior to his current position, Mr. Nayak served as the CEO
of Jai Group, a strategy consulting firm that focuses on BRICS economies and specifically on the Brazil
— India corridor. Prior to this, Mr. Nayak was a part of the leadership team of Tata AutoComp Systems
Limited also known as TACO for 14 years. He served as Group Head of Human Resources, Group Head
of Corporate Planning, Board member and Lead Director at three Tata Group Joint Venture companies

11



Ty
TRITON

VALVES LTD
Challenging Excellence

and finally as CEO of Tata Yazaki Autocomp. During his stint in TACO he conceptualized, planned
and built businesses of Rs. 40 billion with 17 Joint Ventures and 2 wholly owned entities, and set up
operations in India, Germany and China. He also served as a member of the Executive Committee of
the Toyota Kirloskar Suppliers Association (TKSA) and the Honda Siel Suppliers Club and actively
contributed in building the supplier base and capability for both these companies in India. He also
chaired the western region chapters of both associations, leading implementation of initiatives such
as Toyota Production System (TPS), waste reduction programs, Quality Control Circles (QCC) and 5S.

Mr. Prashanth Nayak is a graduate of the National Institute of Technology Karnataka from where he
received his Bachelor of Engineering degree in Electronics and Communication. He was ranked 4t
in his University graduating class. He also holds an MBA from the Indian Institute of Management
Kolkata where he was ranked 17" in his graduating class. During his MBA he was awarded the
Bharat Chamber of Commerce medal for the most balanced and progressive outlook on Management
Problems.

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolutions set forth in Item Nos. 5 & 6 for the approval of the
Shareholders.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives, except Mr. Prashanth Nayak is
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the said Resolutions.

Item No. 7

Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 provides that where a company's borrowings (apart
from temporary loans obtained / to be obtained from the Bankers of the Company in the ordinary
course of business) exceed the aggregate of its Paid-up Share Capital and free reserves, approval of
the Shareholders by a Special Resolution is required.

In view of the Company's future plans and to support its business operations, the Company may need
additional funds. For this purpose, the Company may need to raise finance from various Banks and/
or Financial Institutions and/or any other lending institutions and/or Bodies Corporate and/or such
other persons / individuals as may be considered fit. Hence approval of the Shareholders is being
sought for borrowings (apart from temporary loans obtained/to be obtained from the Company's
bankers in the ordinary course of business) upto an amount not exceeding 200 Crores (Rupees Two
Hundred Crores only), outstanding at any point of time, over and above the aggregate of the Paid-up
Share Capital of the Company and its free reserves, as prevailing from time to time.

The Board recommends the Special Resolution set out at Item No. 7 of this Notice for approval of the
Shareholders.

12
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None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives, is interested or concerned,
financially or otherwise, in the said Resolution.

Item No. 8

The Company is required under Section 148 of the Act to have the audit of its cost records conducted
by a cost accountant in practice. The Board of your Company has, on the recommendation of the Audit
Committee, approved the appointment of Messrs Rao, Murthy and Associates, Cost Accountants,
Bangalore (Firm Registration No. 000065) as the Cost Auditors of the Company to audit the cost
records of the Company for the year ending March 31, 2018, at a remuneration of ¥ 1 lakh plus
applicable taxes and out-of-pocket expenses.

Messrs Rao, Murthy and Associates, Cost Accountants, have furnished a Certificate regarding their
eligibility for appointment as Cost Auditors of the Company.

The Board recommends the remuneration of ¥ 1 lakh plus applicable taxes and out-of-pocket
expenses to Messrs Rao, Murthy and Associates, Cost Accountants, as the Cost Auditors and the
approval of the shareholders is sought for the same by way of an Ordinary Resolution.

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item No. 8 of this Notice for approval of
the Shareholders.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives, is interested or concerned,
financially or otherwise, in the said Resolution

Additional information on Directors seeking Re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting pursuant
to Regulation 36 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulation, 2015 and
Secretarial Standard — 2.

Particulars Mrs. Anuradha M Mr. Prashanth
Gokarn Nayak

Date of Birth December 25, 1942 March 6, 1971

Effective date of Appointment January 1, 2013 May 4, 2018

Qualifications M. Phil. MBA

Expertise in specific functional areas Management of the Business
Company Management

Directorships held in other companies (including
foreign companies) as on date

Nil.

Yazaki India Private
Limited

13
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Particulars Mrs. Anuradha M Mr. Prashanth
Gokarn Nayak

Memberships/ Chairmanships of committees of Nil Nil

other companies (includes only Audit Committee

and Shareholders/ Investors Grievance

Committee)

Number of shares held in the Company 2,80,041 Nil

Regd. Office:

Triton Valves Limited

Sunrise Chambers, 22, Ulsoor Road
Bengaluru — 560 042

CIN: L25T119KA1975PLC002867
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For Triton Valves Limited

Apoorva G

Company Secretary
Membership No.: A32683
Date: May 4, 2018
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Triton Valves Limited
Sunrise Chambers, 22, Ulsoor Road, Bengaluru — 560 042
P. +91 80 25588965/66; F +91 80 25586483; W: www.tritonvalves.com;
E: investors@tritonvalves.com; CIN: L25119KA1975PLC002867

ATTENDANCE SLIP
42 Annual General Meeting — July 26, 2018

Regd. Folio No./DP Client ID:
No. of shares held:

|/we here by record my/our presence at the 42nd Annual General Meeting of the Company, held on
Thursday, July 26, 2018, at 4:00 p.m. at The Gateway Hotel, Residency Road, Bengaluru - 560025,
Karnataka, India

Name of the member/proxy Signature of the member/proxy
(in BLOCK letters)
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Sunrise Chambers, 22, Ulsoor Road, Bengaluru — 560 042
P. +91 80 25588965/66; F +91 80 25586483; W: www.tritonvalves.com;
E: investors@tritonvalves.com; CIN: L25119KA1975PLC002867

PROXY FORM
[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

42" Annual General Meeting — July 26, 2018

NamMe Of the MEMDET (S) & .. .iouiieieeiieeeeeee ettt ettt et e teeteeaeeaeas

BT TR (=T =T = To fo [T SRRSO

| / We, being the member(s) of .................. shares of the above named Company, hereby
appoint

N AN & e e Email e

SIgNAtUre : ... cee e e vessenennnnnn. OF failing him / her

N A e e e e e s Email oo

Signature : .......coceeceeveeeeeeeeecss s e OF failing him / her

N AN e e Email e

SIgNature : ........coeceeeeveeeeeeeeeseessensecese e e OF failing him / her
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as my / our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me / us and on my / our behalf at the 42nd Annual
General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Thursday, July 26, 2018, at 4:00 p.m. at The Gateway
Hotel, Residency Road, Bengaluru - 560 025, Karnataka, India and at any adjournment thereof in
respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

Resolution Description I/We as- I/We dissent to
number sent to the the Resolution
Resolution(FOR) (AGAINST)

1. Adoption of financial statements

2. Declaration of dividend

3. Re-appointment of Mrs. Anuradha M. Gokarn,
Director who retires by rotation

4. Ratification of Appointment of Statutory Auditors

5. Appointment of Mr. Prashanth Nayak as Director

6. Appointment of Mr. Prashanth Nayak as Inde-

pendent Director

7. Increase in Borrowings Powers of the Company

Remuneration to Cost Auditors

Signed this ....ccooevvevrcvvcrnneneee. day Of e 2018 Affix
. Revenue
Signature of the member ... Stamp

Signature of the proxy holder(s) ...

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at
the Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the
Meeting.
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This Annual Report contains forward-looking statements to enable investors to comprehend our future plans and prospects. These statements spell out
anticipated results based on the management's plans and assumptions. Such statements can be identified with the use of words like ‘anticipate’, ‘estimate’,
‘expects’, 'projects’, 'intends’, 'plans’, 'believes’, and other words of similar meaning. The Company does not guarantee that these forward-looking statements
will be realized, although the management believes that they have been prudent in their assumptions. The achievement of the Company's results is subject
to risks, uncertainties and even inaccurate assumptions. The actual results, performance or achievements of the business could, thus, differ materially from
those anticipated, estimated or projected in the Report. Readers should bear this in mind that the Company will undertake no obligation to publicly update
or modify any forward-looking statements, on the basis of subsequent developments, information or future events. The Company has sourced the industry
information from publicly available resources and has not verified this data independently.
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In our journey through four decades, Triton Valves has played a silent
but important role in the lives of people. Our range of products perform
safely and efficiently in all types of vehicles, starting from mopeds,
scooters and motorcycles to passenger cars, trucks, earthmovers

and even aircraft. Triton Valves have a critical task in tyre inflation,
ensuring that vehicles function smoothly, safely and with control.

Our focus on consolidation and diversification has taken us a step
closer to people through our new range of valves for air-conditioners:
At Triton, business is not just about growth by numbers, it is about "
touching lives and contributing our mite to the cause of safety.

Our objective is to
contribute to society by
producing the best quality
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About the Company

02 Triton Valves Limited

Corporate Snapshot

Incorporated in 1975 by our visionary founder
M.V.Gokarn, Triton began manufacturing
valves for the tyre and inner tube industry in
1978 and quickly emerged as a market leader
In India. With the advent of tubeless tyres,
Triton began manufacturing tubeless tyre
valves and evolved from a Tier 2 to a Tier 1
supplier to the automobile industry.

With its strong focus on product quality and R&D, Triton has now evolved into
a precision manufacturer and critical supplier of valves and components to a
diverse range of customers and industries from air-conditioning and hydraulics to
aerospace, mining, defence and industrial HVAC & R.

We are headquartered in Bengaluru, India and our manufacturing facilities and R&D
Center are located in Mysuru. We also operate warehouses in Bengaluru, Chennai
and Delhi in order to serve our customers with Just-In-Time deliveries. All our
facilities conform to IATF 16949, ISO 14001 and BS OHSAS 18001 standards.
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Our Vision

To set global benchmarks of excellence
in every aspect of business.

Our Mission

We don't just manufacture tyre valves.
Our greater cause is safety in the
movement of people and goods in India.

Our Values

PEOPLE

At Triton, we have travelled many a
mile on the rough road to success. But
we have raced past every frontier and
milestone, riding on the unparalleled
strength of our people. As the most
important force of our business, we
have always endeavoured to respect and
empower them, thereby bringing out the
best in each.

CRAFTSMANSHIP

At Triton, the spirit of craftsmanship
is at the heart of all that we do. Paying
attention to the smallest details and
being meticulous and thoughtful in our
daily activities means that our valves and
cores are precision-crafted products.

EXCELLENCE

We have an innate desire to excel in
whatever we do, however small or big
the task might be. Always on the trail of
newer frontiers and benchmarks,
philosophies like ‘get it right the first
time', 'zero defect' and ‘customer comes
first' are a way of life with us.

PASSION

We wear the Triton badge of passion
on our hearts and it is this passion that
allows us common people to attain
uncommon results every time. Team
Triton has always been about coming
together, sharing together, working
together and succeeding together.

CUSTOMER SUCCESS

At Triton, we don't aim to merely satisfy
our customers. It is the success of our
customers for which we strive. We truly
believe that our customers' success is
our success.

ETHICS

At Triton, uncompromising ethics
is rooted in our very DNA. We are
committed to being transparent, fair and
honest and we work with the highest
level of integrity with respect to our
people, the environment and society
at large.

JOY OF LIFE

The smile on a customer's face, the thrill
of solving a problem and the sheer joy of
success. At the end of the day, enjoying
what we do is why we go to work. We
strive to build an ecosystem called Triton
based on this Joy of Life.

The Company is certified
for the IATF 16949 Quality
Standard, ISO 14001
Environment Management
Standard and BS OHSAS
18001 Occupational
Health and Safety
Standard.

Annual Report 2017-18 03’



Competitive Strengths

Triton's reputation for quality, delivery and customer service has earned the Company the trust of leading Original Equipment
Manufacturers (OEMs). Its philosophies like ‘get it right the first time', ‘zero defect’' and ‘customer comes first' have become a way
of life for our employees. It has enabled us to carve out a prominent position in every segment in the markets in which we operate.
Further, the Company enjoys a distinct advantage due to its superior technology, large installed capacities in all product categories,
competitive pricing and approvals from almost every tyre and vehicle manufacturer in the country. These strengths can be leveraged
to further widen the customer base, increase the product offerings and improve the Company’s overall performance.

Air-Conditioning Products “-LJ:.L < Tyre Valves
b, T4
& &%

Accessories Product A
v Portfolio Valve Cores

— e A

Adapters & Plugs > U—/_E‘w_/‘" Service Tools

‘04 Triton Valves Limited



Corporate Overview Statutory Reports Financial Reports

Board of Directors

Independent Non-Executive Director

Managing Director

Independent Non-Executive Director

Independent Non-Executive Director
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Chairman’s Message

Dear Shareholders,

Triton Valves continues to strongly
maintain its motto of ‘Touching Lives.
Moving India’ with the realization that its
products play a significant role in the lives
and safety of people. This motivates the
Company to strive for perfection. Triton
Valves play a critical role in tyre inflation
and ensure that vehicles move smoothly,
safely and with control. With the addition
of products for the air-conditioning
segment, Triton is now playing a silent but
critical role in people's homes, providing
high quality and leakage-free valves for
air-conditioners.

FY 2017-18 was primarily focused
on consolidation and diversification.

The Company has diversified into
manufacturing valves for air-conditioners
in both the industrial and home segments,
thus growing in different domains and
adding more products and applications
to its portfolio. The Company has also
formally entered the aftermarket segment
for tyre valves and accessories and has
significantly increased its presence at
the tyre shop level across the country.
An e-commerce application was also
launched to enable the aftermarket to
access Triton's wide portfolio of OEM
quality products. Triton has also enlarged
its footprint in the global market during
the year with an ever-growing presence
in the Middle-east and Southeast Asia.

FY 2017-18 was primarily
focused on consolidation
and diversification,

GST Implementation and
Macroeconomic Developments

A major milestone in the economic
history of India was the implementation
of GST from July 1, 2017. The Company
successfully made the transition to
GST having made all the necessary
preparations. The Company has benefited
by GST on three counts-firstly, tax
compliance has been simplified, secondly
supply chains have become more cost-
efficient and competitive after removal of
the cascading Central Sales Tax and lastly
GST has created a level playing field for
the industry with India becoming a single
integrated market. The Government's
move of raising import duties on tyres

‘06 . Triton Valves Limited
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and imposition of Anti Dumping Duties
on Chinese tyres has helped reduce the
import of tyres into the Indian market
thereby boosting the domestic market.
In light of these developments, the
prospects for the tyre industry appear to
be positive for the next few years.

Financial Highlights

Your Company has performed well in
terms of top line growth during the year.
Net sales increased by 9.3% to ¥ 226 crore
in FY 2017-18. In spite of the best efforts
of the management team, however, the
Company's bottom line did not grow
as expected on account of the steep
increase in the cost of brass, the major
raw material consumed by the Company.
The global prices of copper and zinc
have been continuously rising since
September 2017 making it difficult to
recover the increases from customers. In
spite of this challenge, the management
team has done a commendable job to
control expenses and ensure that the
profitability of the Company did not take
a very significant hit.

The key financial indicators for the
year were as follows:

+ Net Revenue for the year from
operations increased to ¥ 226.49
crore from ¥ 207.14 crore in the
previous year

Profit Before Tax decreased to
¥ 8.81 crore from ¥ 10.84 crore in
the previous year

Profit After Tax decreased to
% 6.64 crore from ¥ 8.42 crore in the
previous year

Earnings Per Share aggregated to
% 66.03 as compared to ¥ 87.69 in
the previous year

Your Board of Directors having
thoroughly reviewed the performance
and having analyzed and assessed the
future potential of the Company have
recommended, subject to the approval
of the shareholders, a dividend of
% 15 per equity share of ¥ 10 (150%)
to the members, the same as in the
previous vyear. This stable dividend
recommendation reflects the confidence
of the Board in the future potential and
capability of the Company to improve and
sustain a higher level of profitability.

Research and Development

The Company continues to invest
in increasing capacities, improving
manufacturing technology and

developing new products. During the
year, the Company incurred a capital
investment including capital advances
of ¥ 11 crore and an R&D expense of
% 3.35 crore. The R&D Center which
is recognized by the Department of
Science and Technology has performed
well and has added significant value to
the Company. During the year, several
patent applications have been filed
in line with the objective of creating a
strong intellectual property base for the
Company in future. The Company has
also partnered with both industry and
academia in not just developing new
products but also in creating roadmaps
and putting in place processes for
developing new products in step with
technological changes which are
sweeping across the industry.

Outlook for the year ahead

The Company is confident about the year
ahead. Internally, many initiatives taken
during the previous year will manifest
their full year impact in the year ahead,
while the external environment in terms
of market demand and economic factors
are expected to be favorable.

The strategic direction of the
Company can be encapsulated in the
following four points:

+ Focus on expanding customer base
and increasing market share

Strengthen competitiveness by
strong focus on cost controls

Improve financial discipline to
improve operating margins and
cashflows

Streamline internal systems and
processes to improve business
efficiencies across the board

The Company continues to strive to
achieve greater heights, delivering
greater value not only to its customers
and shareholders, but to all its
stakeholders — employees, vendors, the
environment and society at large. | thank
all the employees for their hard work,
dedication and unstinted support. Thank
you dear stakeholders for your trust and
faith reposed in the Company over the
years. | look forward to interact with
you in another positive and rewarding
year ahead.

With Regards,

SK Welling
Chairman
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Reaching Out, Transforming Lives

At Triton, our CSR initiatives focus on the integrated development of
the communities in the vicinity of our plant in Mysuru. Towards this
end, our flagship CSR initiative, Unnati, works through the medium
of the local Anganwadis and government primary schools to drive
change and create social impact. Several programs involving not
just the children but their mothers have been conducted at two
Anganwadis and one primary school.

The Company has also partnered with Swami Vivekananda Youth Movement (SVYM), a reputed and award-winning NGO
for a project to develop the schools and Anganwadis into model ones over a period of three years. The key objective of this
long-term project is to improve early childhood education with a focus on development of children through a dynamic and
conducive learning environment. To achieve its objective, the project uses a four-point strategy as below:

¢ Promoting admission and regular attendance of all children

e Enhancing learning outcomes by training teachers in using child-centric techniques and promoting joyful learning

¢ Reducing malnutrition and incidence of waterborne diseases in children through awareness about nutrition and WASH
(Water Sanitation and Hygiene)

e Strengthening community participation and involvement in school development activities to ensure sustainability

08 Triton Valves Limited
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2013-14
2014-15
2015-16
2016-17

2017-18

Sales ® in lakhs)
16,059.68
16,950.19
16,543.72
20,714.79

—— 22,649.81

. PBT @ in lakhs)

2013-14 390.72

2014-15 978.47
2015-16 877.03

2016-17 1,084.21

2017-18 N 881.86

2013-14
2014-15
2015-16
2016-17

2017-18

Earnings Per Share ®)
29.36
74.82
70.42
87.69

I 66.03

. Shareholders' Payout (%)
2013-14 80

2014-15 120

2015-16 120

2016-17 150

2017-18 I—— 150

2013-14
2014-15
2015-16
2016-17

2017-18

EBITDA (% in lakhs)
1,824.54
2,433.38
2,147.09
2,570.23

I 2,425.99

. Net Worth ® in lakhs)
2013-14 4,799.85

2014-15 5,156.02

2015-16 5,710.90

2016-17 6,582.07

2017-18 ——— 7,067.89
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Board’s Report

Dear Shareholders,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 42" Annual Report
along with the audited financial statements for the financial year
ended March 31, 2018.

1.  Performance Highlight
Zin lakhs

2016-17
Income
Revenue from operations 22,649.81 20,714.79
Other income 190.80 218.62
Total income 22,840.61 20,933.41
Total expenses 21,958.75 19,849.20
Profit Before tax 881.86 1,084.21
Tax expense 228.15 216.06
Profit for the year 653.72 868.15
Total other comprehensive income 10.72 (25.20)
;’:;a:l comprehensive income for the 664.43 842.95
Earnings / (Loss) per share (Basic /
Diluted) ) (Face Value of 310/- each) 66.03 87.69

2.

Business Operations

Your Company's net revenue from operations increased
by 9.34% to ¥22,649.81 lakhs from %20,714.79 lakhs in
the previous year. Profit before tax decreased to ¥881.86
lakhs from the previous year's level of ¥1,084.21 lakhs
representing an decrease of 18.66%. The profit after tax
was 3664.43 lakhs, over the PAT of ¥842.95 lakhs in the
previous year.

Dividend

Based on the Company's performance, your Directors
are pleased to recommend a dividend of ¥15/- per Equity
Share (150%) of ¥10/- each for the Financial Year ended
March 31, 2018.

Reserves

The Reserves of the Company increased by 7.49% to
36,968.89 lakhs as against 36,483.07 lakhs in the previous
year. The Board of Directors does not propose to transfer
any part of the Profits to reserves during the current year.

Prospects for the Financial Year 2018-19

Your Company's prospects are directly linked to those
of the automobile and tyre industries. The automobile
and tyre industry are expected to put up an improved

10.

performance compared to the previous year. Hence, your
Company has a positive outlook for the year ahead.

Change in the nature of business
During the year under review, there has not been any
change in the nature of business.

Deposits

Your Company has not accepted deposits within the
meaning of Sections 73 and 76 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules,
2014.

Subsidiaries/Associates/Joint Ventures
The Company does not have any subsidiaries/associates
or joint ventures.

Corporate Governance and Management Discussion
and Analysis Report

The Corporate Governance Report and Management
Discussion and Analysis Report as stipulated under
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 forms part of the Annual Report.

The requisite Certificate from the Auditors, confirming
compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance
as stipulated under the aforesaid SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 forms
part of this Report.

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013, Mrs. Anuradha M. Gokarn (DIN:00185509) retires
by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and is
eligible for re-appointment.

Mr. Prashanth Nayak (DIN 03371824) was appointed by
the Board as an Independent Director (Additional Director)
of the Company with effect from May 4, 2018 and his
appointment will be subject to approval of the Shareholders
and the same has been included as one of the agenda in
the Notice convening the Annual General Meeting.

Your Board recommends the above appointments.

The Company has received declarations from all its
Independent Directors, confirming that they meet
the criteria of independence as prescribed under the
Companies Act, 2013 and Securities and Exchange Board
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 2015.
Annual Report 2017-18 11 ’
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Auditors

Messrs Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP having ICAI Firm Reg.
No. 117366W/W-100018 are the Statutory Auditors of the
Company for the Financial year ended March 31, 2018 and
their appointment will continue until the conclusion of the
46™ Annual General Meeting to be held in the year 2022.
Their appointment as the Statutory Auditors will be ratified
at the ensuing Annual General Meeting pursuant to the
provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013, and
Rules made thereunder. The Audit Report does not contain
any qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

Secretarial Audit

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the
Companies Act, 2013, and the Rules made thereunder,
the Company has appointed Mr. Parameshwar G Bhat,
Practising Company Secretary as the Secretarial Auditor
of the Company. The Secretarial Audit Report is annexed
as Annexure | and forms an integral part of this Report. The
Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any qualification,
reservation or adverse remark.

Cost Audit

Pursuant to Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Amendment
Rules, 2014, the Company had appointed Messrs
Rao, Murthy and Associates, Cost Accountants, (Firm
Registration No. 000065) to audit the cost accounts of the
Company for the financial year 2017-18 on a remuneration
of %1,00,000. As required under the Companies Act, 2013,
the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor is required
to be placed before the Members in a general meeting
for their ratification. Accordingly, a Resolution seeking
Shareholders's ratification for the remuneration payable to
Messrs Rao, Murthy and Associates, Cost Accountants is
included at Item No. 8 of the Notice convening the Annual
General Meeting.

Directors' Responsibility Statement
Pursuantto Section 134(5) of the Act, the Board of Directors,
to the best of their knowledge and ability, confirm that:

in the preparation of the annual accounts, the
applicable accounting standards have been followed
and there are no material departures;

they have selected such accounting policies and
applied them consistently and made judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company at the end of the financial year and of the
profit of the Company for that period,;

they have taken proper and sufficient care for the
maintenance of adequate accounting records

15.

16.

17.

Vi.

in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities;

they have prepared the annual accounts on a going
concern basis;

they have laid down internal financial controls to be
followed by the Company and such internal financial
controls are adequate and operating effectively;

they have devised proper systems to ensure
compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
and that such systems are adequate and operating
effectively.

Board Meetings

The Board of Directors met four (4) times on May 9, 2017,
August 31, 2017, October 25, 2017 and January 31, 2018.
The maximum interval between any two meetings did
not exceed 120 days. The Agenda of the meetings were
circulated to the Directors in advance, minutes of meetings
of the Board of Directors were circulated amongst the
Directors for their perusal.

Committees of the Board

In accordance with the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Listing requirements, following five Committees of the
Board continued to discharge their respective functions
and duties:

1. Audit Committee

2 Nomination and Remuneration Committee
3 Stakeholders' Relationship Committee

4, Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
5

Risk Management Committee (Not Mandatory)

Details of all the Committees along with their charters,
composition and Meetings held during the year, are
provided in the "Corporate Governance Report” which
forms part of this Annual Report.

Board Evaluation

Evaluation of performance of all Directors is undertaken
annually. The Company has implemented a system of
evaluating performance of the Board of Directors and of
its Committees and individual Directors on the basis of
a structured questionnaire which comprises evaluation
criteria taking into consideration various performance
related aspects. The Board of Directors has expressed its
satisfaction with the evaluation process.

The Company has laid down criteria and policy on
evaluation of the performance of the Board, its Committees
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24,

and Independent Directors as per the Companies Act,
2013 and same is available on the Company's website at
www.tritonvalves.com.

Remuneration Policy

The Policy has been laid down by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee for determining the remuneration
of Directors, KMP and other employees and the criteria
formulated by the Committee for determining qualifications,
positive attributes of Independent Directors is appended as
Annexure Il to this Report and the same is available on the
Company's website at www.tritonvalves.com.

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments

During the year under review, the Company has not
given any loans or provided any guarantees or made any
investments.

Related Party Transactions
Contracts/arrangements/transactions entered by the
Company during the financial year with related parties
were in the ordinary course of business and at arm’s length
basis. During the year, the Company had not entered into
any contract/arrangement/transaction with related parties
which could be considered material in accordance with
the policy of the Company on materiality of related party
transactions. Thus a disclosure in Form AOC-2 in terms of
Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not required.

The Company has formulated a policy on determining
materiality of related party transactions and the same is
available on the Company’'s website at www.tritonvalves.
com.

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Exports
and Foreign Earnings & Outgo

The Information required to be furnished pursuant to
Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 is set out in
the Annexure Il to the Board's Report.

Significant & material orders passed by the Regulators
The Company has not received any significant/material
orders from the Statutory Regulatory bodies/Courts/
Tribunals which affects the operations/status of the
Company.

Risk Management Policy

The Risk Management Committee has been constituted
defining role and responsibilities of the Committee and same
is available on the Company's website at www. tritonvalves.
com

Vigil Mechanism

The Company has established a Vigil Mechanism,

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

which includes a Whistle Blower Policy, for its Directors
and Employees, to provide a framework to facilitate
responsible and secure reporting of concerns of unethical
behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation of
the Company's Code of Conduct & Ethics. The Whistle
Blower Policy is available on the website of the Company
at www.tritonvalves.com.

Extract of Annual Return
The extract of the Annual return in Form MGT-9 is annexed
herewith as Annexure IV to the Board's Report.

Material changes and commitments

There are no changes or commitments made, affecting the
financial position of the between the end of the financial
year as on March 31, 2018 and the date of this Report.

Employee Relations
During the year under review, your Company maintained
cordial relationship with employees at all levels.

Particulars of Employees

The table exhibiting the names and other particulars of
employees in accordance with the provisions of Section
197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 5(1)
of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is appended as
Annexure V to the Board's Report.

Disclosure under the Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act,
2013

Your Company has always believed in providing a safe
and harassment free workplace for every individual working
in the Company's premises through various interventions
and practices. The Company always endeavours to
create and provide an environment that is free from
discrimination and harassment including sexual
harassment.

Policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment at Workplace
has already been implemented as per the directives of
the Supreme Court. Further, the same policy had been
amended recently in line with the recent amendments.
The policy aims at prevention of harassment of employees
and lays down the guidelines for identification, reporting
and prevention of undesired behaviour. The Committee
was formed including an external member to oversee the
effective implementation.

No complaints were received during the year ended March
31, 2018.

Details of adequacy of internal financial controls
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The Company is well equipped with adequate internal
financial controls. The Company has a continuous
monitoring mechanism which enables the Organisation to
maintain the same standard of the control systems and in
managing any default on timely basis because of strong
reporting mechanisms followed by the Company.

Corporate Social Responsibility

The Company has constituted a Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee and has formulated a policy of
CSR and same is available on Company's website at www.
tritonvalves.com. The Annual report on the CSR activities
is appended as Annexure VI to the Board's Report.

Recognition of R & D Centre

The Company had applied for recognition for its in- house
R&D Center during the previous year with the Department
of Scientific and Industrial Research (DSIR). The Directors
are proud to inform the Shareholders that the recognition
has been obtained with effect from April 1, 2016 and is
valid up to March 31, 2019.

33.

Appreciation

Your Directors thank the customers, the vendors and
others acquaintance for their continued support to your
Company's growth.

Your Directors place on record their appreciation for the
support given by HDFC Bank, DBS Bank, Kotak Mahindra
Bank, Yes Bank, SVC Co-operative Bank and Indusind
Bank for meeting the long term and working capital needs
of the Company.

The Board is grateful to the State Government for their
continued support to the Company's activities.

Your Directors are thankful to the esteemed Shareholders
for their support and encouragement. They also wish to
place on record their appreciation for the contribution
made by employees at all levels.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 4, 2018

S.K.Welling
Chairman
DIN:00050943

Regd. Office:

Triton Valves Limited

Sunrise Chambers, 22, Ulsoor Road
Bengaluru — 560 042
CIN: L25119KA1975PLC002867
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ANNEXURE |
FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2018

Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To

The Members

Triton Valves Limited

Bangalore

(CIN: L25119KA1975PLC002867)

| have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance
of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to
good corporate practices by Triton Valves Limited (CIN:
L25119KA1975PLC002867) (hereinafter called ‘the Company’).
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a
reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory
compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the books, papers, minute books,
forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the
Company and also the information provided by the Company,
its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the
conduct of Secretarial Audit, | hereby report that in my opinion,
the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial
year ended on 31.03.2018 complied with the statutory provisions
listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board
processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in
the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and
returns filed and other records maintained by Triton Valves
Limited for the financial year ended on 31.03.2018 according to
the provisions of following Acts/Rules wherever applicable:

(i)  The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made
there under;

(i)  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA')
and the rules made there under;

(iii)  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-
laws framed there under;

(iv)  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules
and regulations made there under to the extent of Foreign
Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and
External Commercial Borrowings;

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed
under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act,

(vii)

(1)

1992 (‘SEBI Act'):-

(@) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

(c)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of
Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2009;

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee
Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;

()  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue
and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;

()  The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and
dealing with client;

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; and

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;

(i)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015;

There were no industry specific laws applicable to the
Company from the list provided by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India:

The other following general laws as may be applicable to
the Company, wherever applicable:

Employer/Employee Related laws & Rules:

i. Industries (Development & Regulation) Act, 1951

ii. The Factories Act, 1948

ii. The Employment Exchanges
notification of Vacancies) Act, 1959

iv. The Apprentices Act, 1961

(Compulsory

V. The Employees Provident Fund & Miscellaneous
Provisions Act, 1952

vi. The Employees State Insurance Act, 1948

vii.  The Workmen's Compensation Act, 1923

viii. The Maternity Benefits Act, 1961
ix.  The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972
X. The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965
Xi. The Industrial Disputes Act, 1947
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Xii.

Xiii.

XiVv.

XV.

XVi.

XVii.

XViii.

XiX.

XX.

XXi.

XXii.

xxiii.
XXiV.

XXV.

XXVi.

XXVii.

XXViii.

)
.

Vi.

Vii.

The Trade Unions Act, 1926

The Payment of Wages Act, 1936

The Minimum Wages Act, 1948

The Child Labour (Regulation & Abolition) Act, 1970

The Contract Labour (Regulation & Abolition) Act,
1970

The Industrial Employment (Standing Orders) Act,
1946

Equal Remuneration Act, 1976

Inter-State Migrant Workmen (Regulation of
Employment and Conditions of Services) Act, 1979

The Sexual Harassment of Women at Work Place
(Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013

Persons with Disabilities (Equal Opportunities,
Protection of Rights and Full Participation) Act, 1996

Prohibition of Employment as Manual Scavengers
and their Rehabilitation Act, 2013

Dangerous Machines (Regulation) Act, 1983
Indian Boilers Act, 1923

The Industrial Establishments (National and Festival
Holidays) Act, 1963

The Labour Welfare Fund Act, 1965

The Karnataka Daily Wage Employees Welfare Act,
2012

For majority of Central Labour Laws the State has
introduced Rules [names of each of the Rules is not
included here]

Environment Related Acts & Rules:

The Environment Protection Act, 1986

The Water (Prevention & Control of Pollution) Act,
1974

The Water (Prevention & Control of Pollution) Cess
Act, 1977

The Air (Prevention & Control of Pollution) Act, 1981

The Government Order Under
(Protection) Act, 1986

Environment

Hazardous Wastes (Management, Handling and
Transboundary Movement) Rules, 2008.

The Karnataka Ground Water (Regulation for
Protection of Sources of Drinking Water) Act, 1999

3) Economic/Commercial Laws & Rules:

‘ 16 Triton Valves Limited

The Competition Act, 2002

ii. The Indian Contract Act, 1872

iii.  The Sales of Goods Act, 1930

iv.  The Forward Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1952
V. The Indian Stamp Act, 1899

vi.  The Transfer of Property Act, 1882

| have also examined compliances with the applicable clauses
of the Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India on the Board and General Meetingsi.e. SS - 1
and SS — 2.

During the period under review, the Company has complied
with the provisions of the Acts, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines,
Standards, etc. mentioned above, wherever applicable. Certain
non material findings made during the course of the audit relating
to Labour Laws, Companies Act and Secretarial Standards were
addressed suitably by the Management.

Further, | report that with regard to financial and taxation matters,
I have relied on the draft Audit Report, Limited Review Report
and the Internal Audit Report provided by the Statutory/Internal
Auditor as the case may be.

| further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly
constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-
Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes
in the composition of the Board of Directors which took place
during the period under review were carried out in compliance
with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board
Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at
least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda
items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the
meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting
members' views are captured and recorded as part of the minutes
as per the practice followed. However, during the period under
report, there was no such case instance.

| further report that there are adequate systems and processes
in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of
the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

Parameshwar G. Bhat
FCS No.: 8860
C P No.: 11004

Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 4, 2018

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which
is annexed as Annexure and forms an integral part of this report.
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‘Annexure’

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter:

1.

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of
the management of the Company. My responsibility is to
express an opinion on these secretarial records based on
our audit.

I have followed the audit practices and processes as were
appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the
correctness of the contents of Secretarial Records. The
verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct
facts are reflected in the secretarial records. | believe that
the processes and practices, | have followed provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of
Financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company

Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 4, 2018

including records under Income Tax Act, Central Excise
Act, Customs Act, Central and State Sales Tax Act.

Where ever required, the Company has represented
about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and
happening of events etc as applicable from time to time.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and
other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is
the responsibility of Management. My examination was
limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to
the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or
effectiveness with which the Management has conducted
the affairs of the Company.

Parameshwar G. Bhat
FCS No.: 8860
C P No.: 11004

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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ANNEXURE Il
Nomination & Remuneration Policy
1. Introduction

In terms of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
the Listing Agreement, entered into by the Company with
Stock Exchanges, as amended from time to time, this
policy on nomination and remuneration of Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel (KMP), Senior Management and
other employees of the Company has been formulated
by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the
Company and approved by the Board of Directors vide
its Resolution dated May 30, 2014. This policy shall act
as a guideline for determining, inter-alia, qualifications,
positive attributes and independence of a Director,
matters relating to the remuneration, appointment,
removal and evaluation of performance of the Directors,
Key Managerial Personnel, Senior Management and other
employees.

Objective of the Policy
The policy is framed with the objective(s):

1. That the level and composition of remuneration is
reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate
Directors of the quality required to run the Company
successfully

2. That the relationship of remuneration to performance is
clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks

3. That the remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel (KMP), and other employees of the Company
involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay
reflecting short and long-term performance objectives
appropriate to the working of the Company and its goals

4, To lay down criteria and terms and conditions with
regard to identifying persons who are qualified to become
Directors (Executive and Non-executive) and persons who
may be appointed in Senior Management, Key Managerial
positions and to determine their remuneration

5. To determine remuneration based on the Company's
size and financial position and trends and practices on
remuneration prevailing in peer companies, in the industry

6. To carry out evaluation of the performance of Directors, as
well as Key Managerial and Senior Management Personnel
and to provide for reward(s) linked directly to their effort,
performance, dedication and achievement relating to the

8.

Company's operations; and

To retain, motivate and promote talent and to ensure
long term sustainability of talented managerial persons
and create competitive advantage

To lay down criteria for appointment, removal of Directors,
Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management
Personnel and evaluation of their performance

In the context of the aforesaid criteria the following policy
has been formulated by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and adopted by the Board of Directors at its
meeting held on March 25 2015.

Effective Date: This policy shall be effective from
Financial Year 2014-15

Definitions

In this Policy unless the context otherwise requires:

1.
2.

o

T o N

o o

o

‘Act' means Companies Act, 2013 and rules there under

‘Board of Directors' or '‘Board’, in relation to the Company,
means the collective body of the Directors of the Company

‘Committee’ means Nomination and Remuneration
Committee of the Company as constituted or reconstituted
by the Board

Company means Triton Valves Limited
‘Directors' means Directors of the Company

‘Independent Director' means a Director referred to in
Section 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013

'Key Managerial Personnel' (KMP) means:

Chief Executive Officer and / or Managing Director
Whole-time Director

Chief Financial Officer

Company Secretary

Such other officer as may be prescribed

‘Ministry' means the Ministry of Corporate Affairs
‘Regulations’ refers to and comprise of Companies
Act, 2013, The Companies (Meeting of Board and its
Powers) Rules, 2014, The Companies (Appointment and
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, The Companies
(Appointment and  Remuneration  of = Managerial
personnel) Rules, 2014, The Companies (Appointment

and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014,
Listing Agreement and such other rules and provisions as
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applicable to the matters dealt in by this Policy 2. Formulate the criteria for determining qualifications,
positive attributes and independence of a Director
‘Senior Management Personnel' for this purpose shall and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the
mean employees of the company who are members of remuneration for the Directors, key managerial personnel
its core management team excluding Board of Directors. and other employees
It would comprise all members of the management and
one level below the executive Director(s), including the 3. Ensure that the Board comprises of a balanced
functional / vertical heads. combination of Executive Directors and Non-executive
Directors and also the Independent Directors
Unless the context otherwise requires, words and
expressions used in this policy and not defined herein but 4. Devise framework to ensure that Directors are inducted
defined in the Companies Act, 2013 as may be amended through suitable familiarization process covering their
from time to time shall have the meaning respectively roles, responsibility and liability
assigned to them therein.
5. Oversee the formulation and implementation of
2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee ESOP Schemes, its administration, supervision, and
formulating detailed terms and conditions in accordance
Guiding Principles for Constitution of Nomination and with SEBI Guidelines
Remuneration Committee
6. Decide/approve details of fixed components and
The Committee will meet at such intervals as deems performance linked incentives along with the performance
fit to carry out the objectives set out in the Policy. A criteria
quorum of two members) is required to be present for
the proceedings to take place. The Committee members 7. Devise a policy on Board diversity
may attend the meeting physically or via permitted audio-
visual mode, subject to the provisions of the applicable 8. Formulate the criteria for evaluation of Independent
Regulations. The Committee shall have the authority to Directors and the Board
call such employee(s), senior official(s) and / or externals,
as it deems fit. The Company Secretary shall act as 9. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall,
Secretary to the Committee. formulate the Remuneration Policy of the Company
COMMITTEE MEMBERS 10.  The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall assist
the Board in ensuring that plans are in place for orderly
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises of succession for appointments to the Board and to senior
the following Directors: management
Name Category Designation ) o .
- - - The Chairman of the nomination and remuneration
Dr. B.R.Pai Independent Director | Chairman committee could be present at the Annual General
Mr. S.K.Welling Independent Director | Member Meeting, to answer the shareholders' queries. However, it
Mrs. Anuradha M. |Non-Executive Member would be up to the Chairman to decide who should answer
Gokarn Director the queries.
FUNCTIONS OF THE NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION Provided that Nominlation and Remur.1eration .Committe.e
COMMITTEE shall set up mechanlsm to carry out its fun.ctlons and is
further authorized to delegate any / all of its powers to
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall, inter-alia, any of the Directors and / or officers Of. t-he Compar!y, as
perform the following functions: deemed necessary for proper and expeditious execution.
1. 3. Applicability

Identify persons who are qualified to become Directors
and who may be appointed in senior management in
accordance with the criteria laid down, recommend to the
Board their appointment and removal and shall carry out
evaluation of every Director's performance

This Policy is applicable to:

1. Directors viz. Executive, Non-executive and

Independent
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2. Key Managerial Personnel
3. Senior Management Personnel

4, Other Employees of the Company
Appointment of Director, KMP and Senior Management

1. The Committee shall identify and ascertain the
integrity, qualification, expertise and experience of
the person for appointment as Director, KMP or at
Senior Management level and recommend to the
Board his/ her appointment

2. A person should possess adequate qualification,
expertise and experience for the position he/
she is considered for appointment. The Committee
has discretion to decide whether qualification,
expertise and experience possessed by a person is
sufficient / satisfactory for the concerned position.

3. Appointment of Independent Directors is subject
to compliance of provisions of section 149 of the
Companies Act, 2013, read with schedule IV and
rules thereunder

4, The Company shall not appoint or continue the
employment of any person as Whole-time Director
who has attained the age of seventy years. Provided
that the term of the person holding this position may
be extended beyond the age of seventy years with
the approval of shareholders by passing a Special
Resolution based on the explanatory statement
annexed to the notice for such motion indicating the
justification for extension of appointment beyond
seventy years.

Term / Tenure
Managing Director / Whole-time Director

The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any person
as its Executive Director, Managing Director or Executive
Director for a term not exceeding five years at a time. No
re-appointment shall be made earlier than one year before
the expiry of term.

Independent Director

to the provisions of the applicable Regulations, an
Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to
five consecutive years on the Board of the Company and
will be eligible for re-appointment on passing of a Special
Resolution by the Company and disclosure(s) of such
appointment in the Board's report.

Provided that a person who has already served as an
Independent Director for five years or more in a company
as on October 1, 2014 shall be eligible for appointment,
on completion of his present term, for one more term of up
to five years only.

No Independent Director shall hold office for more than
two consecutive terms, but such Independent Director
shall be eligible for appointment after expiry of three years
of ceasing to become an Independent Director. Provided
that an Independent Director shall not, during the said
period of three years, be appointed in or be associated
with the Company in any other capacity, either directly or
indirectly.

However, if a person who has already served as an
Independent Director for 5 years or more in the Company as
onOctober 1,2014 or such other date as may be determined
by the Committee as per regulatory requirement, he / she
shall be eligible for appointment for one more term of 5
years only.

At the time of appointment of Independent Director, it
should be ensured that number of Boards on which such
Independent Director serves is restricted to seven listed
companies as an Independent Director and three listed
companies as an Independent Director in case such person
is serving as a Whole-time Director of a listed Company
or such prescribed period by the Statutory Authority from
time to time.

Training of Independent Directors

1. The company shall provide suitable training
to Independent Directors to familiarize them with
the company, their roles, rights, responsibilities in
the company, nature of the industry in which the
company operates, business model of the company,
etc.

2. The details of such training imparted shall be
disclosed in the Annual Report

Evaluation

The Committee shall carry out evaluation of performance
of every Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel
at regular interval (yearly).

Removal

The Committee may recommend, to the Board with

reasons recorded in writing, removal of a Director, KMP or
Senior Management Personnel subject to the provisions
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11.

of the Companies Act, 2013, and all other applicable Acts,
Rules and Regulations, if any.

Retirement

The Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel shall
retire as per the applicable provisions of the Regulations
and the prevailing policy of the Company. The Board will
have the discretion to retain the Director, KMR Senior
Management Personnel in the same position/remuneration
or otherwise even after attaining the retirement age, for
the benefit of the Company.

Matters relating to the remuneration, perquisites for
the Whole-time Director, KMP and Senior Management
Personnel

1. The remuneration / compensation / profit-linked
commission etc. to the Whole-time Director,
Directors and Independent Directors will be
determined by the Committee and recommended
to the Board for approval. The remuneration /
compensation / profit- linked commission etc.
shall be in accordance with the percentage / slabs
/ conditions laid down in the Articles of Association
of the Company, Act and shall be subject to the prior
/ post approval of the shareholders of the Company
and Central Government, wherever required

2. As regards the remuneration of KMP Senior
Management Personnel and other employees,
the determination shall be effected by way of annual
presentation before the Committee by Principal —
HR and / or by the Chief Financial Officer, which
would have requisite details. The Committee shall
peruse the same and approve accordingly.

3. Increments to the existing remuneration /
compensation structure shall be approved by
the Committee. Increments to the Whole Time
Director(s) should be within the slabs approved
by the Shareholders. Increments will be effective
from 1st April in respect of a Whole-time Director
as well as in respect of other employees of the
Company, unless otherwise decided.

4, Where any insurance is taken by the Company on
behalf of its Whole-time Director, Chief Executive
Officer, Chief Financial Officer, the Company
Secretary and any other employees forindemnifying
them against any liability, the premium paid on
such insurance shall not be treated as part of the
remuneration payable to any such personnel.
Provided that if such person is proved to be guilty,

12.

13.

the premium paid on such insurance shall be treated
as part of the remuneration

Remuneration to Whole-time / Executive / Managing
Director Remuneration

The Whole-time Director shall be eligible for remuneration
as may be approved by the Shareholders of the Company
on the recommendation of the Committee and the Board
of Directors. The break-up of the pay scale, performance
bonus and quantum of perquisites including, employer's
contribution to PF, pension scheme, medical expenses, club
fees etc. shall be decided and approved by the Board on
the recommendation of the Committee and shall be within
the overall remuneration approved by the shareholders
and Central Government, wherever required.

Minimum Remuneration

If, in any financial year, the Company has no profits
or its profits are inadequate, the Company shall pay
remuneration to its Whole-time Director in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and if it
is not able to comply with such provisions, then with the
previous approval of the Central Government.

Provisions for excess remuneration

If any Whole-time Director draws or receives, directly or
indirectly by way of remuneration any such sums in
excess of the limits prescribed under the Companies
Act, 2013 or without the prior sanction of the Central
Government, where required, he / she shall refund such
sums to the Company and until such sum is refunded, hold
it in trust for the Company. The Company shall not waive
recovery of such sum refundable to it unless permitted by
the Central Government.

Remuneration to Non-executive / Independent Director
Sitting Fees

The Non-executive Independent Directors of the Company
shall be paid sitting fees as per the applicable Regulations
and no sitting fee is paid to Non-executive Non
Independent Directors. The quantum of sitting fees will
be determined as per the recommendation of Nomination
and Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board
of Directors of the Company.

Profit-linked Commission

The profit-linked Commission shall be paid within the
monetary limit approved by the shareholders of the
Company subject to the same not exceeding 1% of the net
profits of the Company computed as per the applicable
provisions of the Regulations.
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Stock Options

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, an Independent
Director shall not be entitled to any stock option of the
Company. Only such employees of the Company and
its subsidiaries as approved by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee will be granted ESOPs.

Remuneration to KMR Senior Management Personnel
and Other Employees

The KMR Senior Management Personnel and other
employees of the Company shall be paid monthly
remuneration as per the Company's HR policies and/
or as may approved by the Committee. The break-up

of the pay scale and quantum of perquisites including,
employer's contribution to PF, pension scheme, medical
expenses, club fees etc. shall be as per the Company's HR
policies.

The Principal — HR and / or the Chief Financial Officer of
the Company, will make org-wide annual presentation(s)
before the Committee which would have requisite details
setting out the proposed performance bonus payouts
for the current financial year as well as the proposed
increments for the next financial year. The Committee
shall peruse and approve the same unless required
under relevant regulations, to refer the same to the Board
of Directors and / or Shareholders of the Company.

This Remuneration Policy shall apply to all future /
continuing employment / engagement(s) with the
Company. In other respects, the Remuneration Policy shall
be of guidance for the Board. Any departure from the policy

shall be recorded and reasoned in the Committee and
Board meeting minutes.

The remuneration for KMP and Senior Managerial
Personnel and other employees of the Company shall
be approved by the Committee based on the org-wide
recommendation / presentation by the Principal — HR and/
or the Chief Financial Officer of the Company. In case any
of the relevant regulations require that remuneration of
KMPs or any other officer is to be specifically approved by
the Committee and / or the Board of Directors then such
approval will be accordingly procured.

15. Dissemination

16.

The details of the Policy and the evaluation criteria as
applicable shall be published on Company's website and
accordingly disclosed in the Annual Report as part of
Board's report therein.

Amendments to the Policy

The Board of Directors on its own and / or as per the
recommendations of Nomination and Remuneration
Committee can amend this Policy, as and when deemed fit.

In case of any amendment(s), clarification(s), circular(s)
etc. issued by the relevant authorities, not being consistent
with the provisions laid down under this Policy, then such
amendment(s), clarification(s), circular(s) etc. shall
prevail upon the provisions hereunder and this Policy
shall stand amended accordingly from the effective date
as laid down under such amendment(s), clarification(s),
circular(s) etc.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




Corporate Overview

Statutory Reports

Financial Reports

ANNEXURE 1l

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign

Exchange Earnings and Outgo

(Information pursuant to Clause (m) of sub-section (3)
of Section 134 of the Act read with the Companies (Accounts)

Rules, 2014)

A. Conservation of Energy

a.

Power factor has been improved to 0.99 by installing
capacitors in the Main Voltage Panel.

Power consumption has been reduced by process
improvement in molding process.

High energy consumption equipment is operated
during off-peak hours to take advantage of the
lower power tariffs.

Efficiency of chiller units has been increased by
innovative design of cooling water circuits

Action initiated to introduce LED lights in place of
metal halide lamps.

Solar heating is being used in place of electrical
heating in some areas.

Usage of solar energy through solar power suppliers
is being explored.

B. Technology Absorption

a.

Research and Development (R&D)

The specific are as in which R&D was carried out by
the Company are:

i. Development of new products for the
domestic and export markets.

ii. Development of new rubber compounds
and formulations.

iii.  Development of new tools, moulds, jigs and
fixtures.

iv. Development of new
processes and techniques

manufacturing

V. Development of new equipment and
modification of existing machinery.

Benefits derived as a result of the above R&D

The R&D activities are primarily carried out in our in-
house, independent R&D Center located within our
Mysore facility. The R&D center is well equipped to
cater to our needs. New products are continuously
designed, developed and tested for compliance

to internationally recognized standards as well as
customer specific requirements. The development
of new tools, moulds and fixtures has resulted
in increased productivity, waste reduction and
improvement in quality. Several new and improved
manufacturing processes have been developed
which have resulted in reduction in scrap generation
and improvements in product performance.
Development of new equipment has resulted in
savings in capital expenditure and increased levels
of shop-floor automation.

More sophisticated R&D infrastructure with
complete facility for raw material testing, rubber
testing and product testing are installed in the new
R&D facility which has helped to increase confidence
of customers.

R&D facility created to manufacture prototypes and
small batch development activities.

Future Plan of Action

Itis planned to develop new products to meet the changing
needs of customers. Itis also proposed to focus on process
improvements for cost reduction and quality improvement.
Another area of work which the Company has identified
is to reduce the adverse impact of manufacturing on the
environment. It is proposed to take up projects which will
substitute existing processes with more environmental
friendly ones.

To develop substitutes for imported tools, spares
and raw materials.

To develop new products for domestic and export
markets in applications other than tyre valves and
valves cores.

Planned to develop TPMS valves and sensors for
export and domestic market.

To develop high performance products to suit high
temperature and high pressure applications

To substitute hazardous materials used in
manufacturing with eco-friendly ones

More focused initiatives for fire safety compliance
requirements are planned

Expenditure on Research & Development

Zin lakhs
2017-18 | 2016-17
a. Capital 95.88 285.16
b. Recurring 239.20 208.35
Total 335.08 493.50
Total R&D expenditure as a 1.47% 2.64%
percentage of turnover
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A. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

2 in lakhs

2017-18
Foreign exchange earned through exports 3,359.35
Foreign exchange used 11,605.95

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 4, 2018

Regd. Office:

Triton Valves Limited

Sunrise Chambers, 22, Ulsoor Road
Bengaluru — 560 042

CIN: L25119KA1975PLC002867

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

S.K.Welling
Chairman
DIN:00050943
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ANNEXURE IV

FORM NO. MGT 9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
AS ON FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2018

PURSUANT TO SECTION 92 (3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 AND RULE 12(1) OF THE COMPANY (MANAGEMENT &
ADMINISTRATION) RULES, 2014.

REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

1 CIN L25119KA1975PLC002867
2 Registration Date 10-Sep-75
3 Name of the Company Triton Valves Limited
4 Category/Sub-category of the Company Company Limited by Shares
Indian Non-Government Company
5 Address of the Registered office & contact Sunrise Chambers, 22, Ulsoor Road, Bangalore -560042.

details Contact Details —
Apoorva G - Company Secretary and Compliance Officer,
Ph No: 080-25588965/66.

Whether listed company Yes
Name, Address & contact details of the Canbank Computer Services Limited,
Registrar & Transfer Agent, if any. 218, J.PRoyale, 1st Floor, 2nd Main, Sampige Road,

Malleswaram, Banglore-560 003.
Contact Details: Mr.Ravi, Manager-RTA
Contact No: 080-23469661/62/64. E: canbankrta@ccsl.co.in

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

(All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated)

Sl. | Name and Description of main products / services NIC Code of the % to total turnover of the
No. Product/service Company
1 Automobile Tyre Tube & Tubeless Valves and Accessories 848180-04 100

PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

SI. | Name and address of the Company | CIN/GLN Holding/ Subsidiary/ % of shares Applicable
No. Associate held Section

Not Applicable
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V.

SHARE HOLDING PATTERN

(Equity share capital breakup as percentage of total equity)

(i) Category-wise Shareholding

Category of
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning

of the year

[As on 1-April-2017]

No. of Shares held at the end

of the year

[As on 31-March-2018]

Demat

Physical Total

% of Total
Shares

Demat

Physical | Total

% of Total
Shares

% Change
during the
year

A. Promoters
(1) Indian

a) Individual/
HUF

b) Central Govt
c) State Govi(s)
d) Bodies Corp.
e) Banks / FI

f) Any other

Sub Total (A) (1)
(2) Foreign

a) NRI Individuals

b) Other
Individuals

c) Bodies Corp.

d) Any other

499,904

499,904

499,904

499,904

50.49

50.49

499,804

499,804

499,804

499,804

50.48

50.48

0.01

0.01

Sub Total (A) (2)

TOTAL (A)

499,904

499,904

50.49

499,804

499,804

50.48

0.01

B. Public
Shareholding

1. Institutions
a) Mutual Funds
b) Banks / FI

c) Central Govt
d) State Govt(s)

e) Venture
Capital Funds

f) Insurance
Companies

g) Flls

41,333

41,333

417

18,069

18,069

1.83

2.35
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Category of No. of Shares held at the beginning No. of Shares held at the end % Change
Shareholders of the year of the year during the
[As on 1-April-2017] [As on 31-March-2018] year
Demat | Physical Total % of Total | Demat | Physical | Total % of Total
Shares Shares

h) Foreign - - - - -
Venture Capital - - - -
Funds
i) Others - - - - -
(specify) - - - -
Sub-total (B)(1):- 41,333 - 41,333 417 18,069 - 18,069 1.83 2.35
2. Non-
Institutions

a) Bodies Corp.

i) Indian 24,326 350 | 24,676 2.49| 32,460 350 32,810 3.31 (0.82)
ii) Overseas - - - - - - - - -
b) Individuals

i) Individual 309,992 42,194 | 352,186 35.57 | 332911 | 30,841 | 363,752 36.74 (1.17)

shareholders
holding nominal
share capital
upto Rs. 1 lakh

i) Individual 54,000 -| 54,000 5.45| 54,000 - 54,000 5.45 -
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital in
excess of Rs 1

lakh

HUF 12,901 -1 12,901 1.30| 12,869 - 12,869 1.30 0.00
Non Resident 3,574 - 3,574 0.36 7,115 - 7,115 0.72 (0.36)
Indians

Overseas - - - - - - - - -

Corporate Bodies
Foreign Nationals - - - - - - - - -

Clearing 1,453 - 1,453 0.15 1,155 - 1,155 0.12 0.03
Members

Trusts - - - - - - - - -

Foreign Bodies - - - - - - - - -

-DR

IEPF Authority - - - - 453 - 453 0.00 (0.00)
Sub-total (B)(2):- | 406,246 42,544 | 448,790 45.33 | 440,963 31,191 | 472,154 47.69 (2.36)
Total Public (B) 447,579 42,544 | 490,123 49.571 | 459,032 31,191 | 490,223 49.52 (0.01)

C. Shares held - - - - - - - - -
by Custodian for
GDRs & ADRs

Grand Total 947,483 42,544 | 990,027 100.00 | 958,836 | 31,191 | 990,027 100.00 -

(A+B+C)
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(i)

Shareholding of Promoter

(iii)

(iv)

Sl. Shareholder's Name Shareholding at the beginning of the Shareholding at the end of the year % change
No. year in share-
holding
No. of % of total % of Shares | No. of % of total % of Shares during the
Shares Shares Pledged/ | Shares Shares Pledged /
year
of the encumbered of the encumbered
company to total company to total
shares shares
1 | Anuradha Maruti Gokarn | 280,041 28.29 - | 280,041 28.29 - -
o | Nagarkatte Shridharmur- | 1, 5 11.36 - | 112,506 11.36 -
thy Nirmala
Aditya Maruti Gokarn 46,822 473 -| 46,822 4.73 - -
4 | Anil Maruti Gokarn 47,210 477 -| 47,210 477 - -
5 | Pradeep P Koppikar 13,325 1.35 -| 13,225 1.34 - 0.01
Total 499,904 50.49 - | 499,804 50.48 - 0.01

Change in Promoters' Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

Sl. No Particulars Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding during
beginning of the year the year
No. of shares | % of total shares | No. of shares | % of total shares
of the Company of the Company
Pradeep P Koppikar
1 At the beginning of the year (as on 01.04.2017) 13,325 1.35 13,325 1.35
Date wise Increase/ Decrease in Sharehold- Sale of 100 - 13,225 1.34
ing during the year specifying the reasons for
increase/ decrease (e.g. allotment/ transfer/
bonus/ sweat equity, etc):
At the end of the year (as on 31.03.2018) 13,225 1.34 13,225 1.34

Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders

(Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

Sl. No For each of the Top 10 shareholders Shareholding at the beginning | Cumulative Shareholding during
of the year the year
No. of shares % of total No. of shares % of total
shares of the shares of the
Company Company
K Raghunath Shenoy
At the beginning of the year (as on 01.04.2017) 54,000 5.45 54,000 5.45
Date wise Increase/ Decrease in Shareholding - - - -
1 during the year specifying the reasons for
increase/ decrease (e.g. allotment/ transfer/
bonus/ sweat equity, etc):
At the end of the year (as on 31.03.2018) 54,000 5.45 54,000 5.45
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Sl. No

For each of the Top 10 shareholders

Shareholding at the beginning
of the year

Cumulative Shareholding during
the year

No. of shares % of total
shares of the
Company

No. of shares % of total
shares of the
Company

SBI Equity Opportunities Fund Series IV*
At the beginning of the year (as on 01.04.2017)

Date wise Increase/ Decrease in Shareholding
during the year specifying the reasons for
increase/ decrease (e.g. allotment/ transfer/
bonus/ sweat equity, etc):

At the end of the year (as on 31.03.2018)

10,188 1.03
Sale of 10188 1.03

10,188 1.03

SBI Equity Opportunities Fund Series I1*
At the beginning of the year (as on 01.04.2017)

Date wise Increase/ Decrease in Shareholding
during the year specifying the reasons for
increase/ decrease (e.g. allotment/ transfer/
bonus/ sweat equity, etc):

At the end of the year (as on 31.03.2018)

14,355 1.45
Sale of 14,355 1.45

14,355 1.45

SBI Long Term Advantage Fund Series |
At the beginning of the year (as on 01.04.2017)

Date wise Increase/ Decrease in Shareholding
during the year specifying the reasons for
increase/ decrease (e.g. allotment/ transfer/
bonus/ sweat equity, etc):

At the end of the year (as on 31.03.2018)

10,000 1.01

10000 1.01

10000 1.01

10000 1.01

Katy Dolly Navasariwalla
At the beginning of the year (as on 01.04.2017)

Date wise Increase/ Decrease in Shareholding
during the year specifying the reasons for
increase/ decrease (e.g. allotment/ transfer/
bonus/ sweat equity, etc):

At the end of the year (as on 31.03.2018)

7,500 0.76

7500 0.76

7500 0.76

7500 0.76

Pooja Ahlawat
At the beginning of the year (as on 01.04.2017)

Date wise Increase/ Decrease in Shareholding
during the year specifying the reasons for
increase/ decrease (e.g. allotment/ transfer/
bonus/ sweat equity, etc):

At the end of the year (as on 31.03.2018)

7,199 0.73
Sale of 604 0.06

6,595 0.67

7,199 0.73
6,595 0.67

6,595 0.67

Deepak Dhall
At the beginning of the year (as on 01.04.2017)

Date wise Increase/ Decrease in Shareholding
during the year specifying the reasons for
increase/ decrease (e.g. allotment/ transfer/
bonus/ sweat equity, etc):

At the end of the year (as on 31.03.2018)

6,333 0.64

6,333 0.64

6,333 0.64

6,333 0.64
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Sl. No For each of the Top 10 shareholders Shareholding at the beginning | Cumulative Shareholding during
of the year the year
No. of shares % of total No. of shares % of total
shares of the shares of the
Company Company

SBI Long Term Advantage Fund Series Il

At the beginning of the year (as on 01.04.2017) 6,000 0.61 6,000 0.61

Date wise Increase/ Decrease in Shareholding - - - -
8 during the year specifying the reasons for

increase/ decrease (e.g. allotment/ transfer/

bonus/ sweat equity, etc):

At the end of the year (as on 31.03.2018) 6,000 0.61 6,000 0.61

Minto Park Estates Private Limited

At the beginning of the year (as on 01.04.2017) 5,460 0.55 5,460 0.55

Date wise Increase/ Decrease in Shareholding - - - -
9 during the year specifying the reasons for

increase/ decrease (e.g. allotment/ transfer/

bonus/ sweat equity, etc):

At the end of the year (as on 31.03.2018) 5,460 0.55 5,460 0.55

Nirmala Yeshwant Pai

At the beginning of the year (as on 01.04.2017) 5,100 0.52 5,100 0.52

Date wise Increase/ Decrease in Shareholding - - - -
10 during the year specifying the reasons for

increase/ decrease (e.g. allotment/ transfer/

bonus/ sweat equity, etc):

At the end of the year (as on 31.03.2018) 5,100 0.52 5,100 0.52

Vibha Prashant Bamb*

At the beginning of the year (as on 01.04.2017) 5,063 0.51 5,063 0.51

Date wise Increase/ Decrease in Shareholding Purchase of 0.04 5,425 0.55
11 | during the year specifying the reasons for 362

increase/ decrease (e.g. allotment/ transfer/

bonus/ sweat equity, etc):

At the end of the year (as on 31.03.2018) 5,425 0.55 5,425 0.55

Bamb Prashant Ishwardas*

At the beginning of the year (as on 01.04.2017) 3,674 0.37 3,674 0.37

Date wise Increase/ Decrease in Shareholding Purchase of 0.08 4,487 0.45
12 during the year specifying the reasons for 813

increase/ decrease (e.g. allotment/ transfer/

bonus/ sweat equity, etc):

At the end of the year (as on 31.03.2018) 4,487 0.45 4,487 0.45

#Not in the list of Top 10 shareholders as on April 1, 2017 The same is reflected above since the shareholder was one of the Top 10 shareholder as on March 31, 2018.

* Ceased to be in the list of Top 10 shareholders as on March 31, 2018. The same is reflected above since the shareholder was one of the Top 10 shareholder as on
April 1, 2017.
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v)

Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sl.
No

For each of the Directors and KMP No. of shares

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

No. of
shares

% of total
shares of the
Company

No. of
shares

% of total
shares of the
Company

Aditya M. Gokarn (Managing Director)

At the beginning of the year

Date wise Increase/ Decrease in Shareholding during the year
specifying the reasons for increase/ decrease (e.g. allotment/
transfer/bonus/ sweat equity, etc):

At the end of the year

46,822

46,822

4.73

4.73

46,822

46,822

4.73

4.73

Anuradha M Gokarn (Non-executive Director)

At the beginning of the year

Date wise Increase/ Decrease in Shareholding during the year
specifying the reasons for increase/ decrease (e.g. allotment/
transfer/bonus/ sweat equity, etc):

At the end of the year

2,80,041

2,80,041

28.28

28.28

2,80,041

2,80,041

28.28

28.28

Dr. B. R. Pai (Director)

At the beginning of the year

Date wise Increase/ Decrease in Shareholding during the year
specifying the reasons for increase/ decrease (e.g. allotment/
transfer/bonus/ sweat equity, etc):

At the end of the year

1,430

1,430

0.14

0.14

1,430

1,430

0.14

0.14

S. K. Welling (Director)

At the beginning of the year

Date wise Increase/ Decrease in Shareholding during the year
specifying the reasons for increase/ decrease (e.g. allotment/
transfer/ bonus/ sweat equity, etc):

At the end of the year

Tamhant Jain (Director)

At the beginning of the year

Date wise Increase/ Decrease in Shareholding during the year
specifying the reasons for increase/ decrease (e.g. allotment/
transfer/bonus/ sweat equity, etc):

At the end of the year

M:r. Prashanth Nayak (Director)

At the beginning of the year

Date wise Increase/ Decrease in Shareholding during the year
specifying the reasons for increase/ decrease (e.g. allotment/
transfer/bonus/ sweat equity, etc):

At the end of the year

Srikanth Shenoy (Chief Financial Officer)

At the beginning of the year

Date wise Increase/ Decrease in Shareholding during the year
specifying the reasons for increase/ decrease (e.g. allotment/
transfer/bonus/ sweat equity, etc):

At the end of the year

Apoorva G (Company Secretary)

At the beginning of the year

Date wise Increase/ Decrease in Shareholding during the year
specifying the reasons for increase/ decrease (e.g. allotment/
transfer/bonus/ sweat equity, etc):

At the end of the year
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VII.

‘32 Triton Valves Limited

INDEBTEDNESS.

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment.  in lakhs)
Particulars Secured Loans Unsecured Deposits Total

excluding Loans Indebtedness
deposits

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year
i) Principal Amount 1,369.53 415.00 - 1784.53
ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -
iii) Interest accrued but not due - - - -
Total (i+ii+iii) 1,369.53 415.00 - 1784.53
Change in Indebtedness during the financial year
* Addition 500.00 25.00 525.00
* Reduction (400.54) (400.54)
Net Change 99.46 25.00 124.46
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year
i) Principal Amount 1,468.99 440.00 1,908.99
ii) Interest due but not paid
iii) Interest accrued but not due
Total (i+ii+iii) 1,468.99 440.00 1,908.99

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:  in lakhs)

Sl. | Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/Manager

No.

Aditya M. Gokarn - Managing Director

1 Gross salary

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income- tax Act, 1961
Stock Option

Sweat Equity

Commission

- as % of profit

- others, specify

AN

5 | Others, please specify

(a) Salary as per provisions contained u/s 17(1) of the Income —tax Act, 1961

75.07
9.98

Total

85.05

Ceiling as per the Act

168.00+

* Note: The remuneration paid to Mr. Aditya M Gokarn are within the limits prescribed under Section Il of Part Il of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 which

prescribes the maximum remuneration that can be paid in case of loss/ inadequate profits.

B. Remuneration to other Directors ( in lakhs)
Sl. | Particulars of Remuneration Fee for Commission Others, please Total
No. attending board specify
committee
meetings
1 Independent Directors
S. K. Welling 2.75 3.05 - 5.80
Dr. B. R. Pai 2.75 3.05 - 5.80
Tamhant Jain 1.00 3.05 - 4.05
Total (1) 6.50 9.15 - 15.65
2 Other Non-Executive Directors
Anuradha M Gokarn 2.25 3.05 - 5.30
Total (2) 2.25 3.05 - 5.30
Total (B)=(1+2) 8.75 12.2 - 20.95
Total Managerial
Remuneration 106.00*
Ceiling as per the Act 180.20#
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* Exclusive of sitting fees
# The remuneration paid to Mr. Aditya M Gokarn are within the limits prescribed under Section Il of Part Il of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 which prescribes
the maximum remuneration that can be paid in case of loss/ inadequate profits. Including commission paid to Non-Executive Directors of the net profit not exceeding
one percent of the net profit in aggregate as approved by the Shareholders by a Special Resolution in the AGM held on August 5, 2016.

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD :- (X in lakhs)
S| | Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
No. Srikanth Shenoy Apoorva G
1 | Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961 A43.77 7.73
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 0.39 0.02
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income- tax Act,
1961
2 | Stock Option - ]
3 | Sweat Equity - -
4 | Commission - )
5 | Others, please specify
Total 44.16 7.75
VIII. PENALITIES / PUNISHMENT / COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES : NIL
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Place: Bengaluru S.K.Welling
Date: May 4, 2018 Chairman

Regd. Office:

Triton Valves Limited

Sunrise Chambers, 22, Ulsoor Road
Bengaluru — 560 042

CIN: L25119KA1975PLC002867

DIN:00050943
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Annexure V

Particulars of Employees

(A)

‘34 Triton Valves Limited

Details / Disclosures of Ratio of Remuneration to each Director and KMP (Pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act,

2013 and Rule 5(1) of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014):
(i) the ratio of the remuneration (X in lakhs)
of each d.irector to the median | | Name of Director Commission (Il) | Sitting Salaries & | Total (Il) | Ratio
remuneration of the employefas Fees (Il)* | Perquisites (times)
;’Z;Pe company for the financial | "y "oy Wy eliing 3.05 2.75 - 5.80 1.12

' Dr. BR Pai 3.05 2.75 - 5.80 1.12
Mrs. Anuradha M 3.05 2.25 - 530 1.03
Gokarn
Mr. Tamhant Jain* 3.05 1.00 - 4.05 0.79
Mr. Aditya M Gokarn - - 85.05 85.05 16.54
Medium Employee Remuneration 5.14
(Average CTC of staff + Workmen)
* Mr. Tamhant Jain, has been appointed with effect from February 3, 2017.
( in lakhs)
Name of Director Remuneration Remuneration Change %
(2016-17) (2017-18)
Mr. S K Welling 6.75 5.8 (14.01)
(i) the percentage increase in||p, BR Pai 6.75 5.8 (14.01)
remuneration of each director, Mrs. Anuradha M
Chief Financial Officer, Chief Gokarn 6.00 5.3 (11.60)
Executive  Officer, Company i Aditva M Gok 2269 850 1701
Secretary or Manager, if any, in r. Aditya okarn : 5.05 :
the financial year; Mr. Tamhant Jain* 0.71 4.05 -
Mr. Srikanth Shenoy=** 20.55 44.16 -
Ms. Apoorva G 7.09 7.75 9.38

* Mr. Tamhant Jain, was appointed w.e.f February 3, 2017.
** Mr. Srikanth Shenoy was appointed as CFO w.e.f. October 21, 2016.

(iii) the percentage increase in
the median remuneration of
employees in the financial year;

11.98%

(iv) the number of permanent
employees on the rolls of
company as on March 31, 2018.

Staff including MD — 142
Permanent Workers — 162

(v) average percentile increase
already made in the salaries
of employees other than the
managerial personnel in the last
financial year and its comparison
with the percentile increase in
the managerial remuneration and
justification thereof and point
out if there are any exceptional
circumstances for increase in the

managerial remuneration;

Salary increase of Managerial personnel increased by 9%
Salary increase of other than Managerial personnel increased by 11%
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(vi)  Affirmation that the | Yes, remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the company.
remuneration is as per the
remuneration policy of the
company.

(B)  Statement showing Details of Employees of the Company as per Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014: Not Applicable

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Place: Bengaluru S.K.Welling

Date: May 4, 2018 Chairman
DIN:00050943

Regd. Office:

Triton Valves Limited

Sunrise Chambers, 22, Ulsoor Road

Bengaluru — 560 042

CIN: L25T119KA1975PLC002867

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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ANNEXURE VI
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Activities
(Pursuant to Rule 8 (1) of Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014)

1. A brief outline of the Company's CSR policy, including overview of projects or programs proposed to be undertaken and a
reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or programs:

Triton Valves Limited has always believed in good CSR practices since its inception. The Company intends to bridge the gap
between socially-economically backward communities and socially-settled communities. You Company is working on areas
like self-employment for rural women, upliftment of talented but economically weak children; and making the future generation,
both morally and socially strong.

‘UNNATI - To achieve progress/development in our neighboring educational organizations, by building long-lasting relationships
with them and therefore, voluntarily contributing to a better society and cleaner environment.

The CSR Policy is available on the Company's website at www.tritonvalves.com

2. The composition of the CSR Committee:
The members of the CSR Committee of the Board as on March 31, 2018 are as under:
a) Mr. S. K. Welling — Chairman
b) Mrs. Anuradha M. Gokarn — Member
c) Dr. B R Pai — Member

3. Average Net Profit of the Company for the last three financial years: 3960.73 lakhs
4, Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two percent of the amount as in item 3 above): 319.21 lakhs

5. Details of CSR spent during the financial year.
a) Total amount spent for the financial year:¥19.21 lakhs
b) Amount unspent, if any: Nil

¢) Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below:

Sl. CSR project/ Sector in Projects/ Amount Amount spent Cumulative | Amount spent
No activity which the Programs (1) | of outlay | on the project expenditure direct or
identified project is Local area budget or programs up to the through
covered or others (2) | project or Subheads: reporting implementing
Specify the program (i) Direct period agency
state and wise expenditure
district where | R inlakhs) | on projects or
project or programs
programs were (2)Over-heads
undertaken (R in lakhs)

1 Promoting Promoting Mysore 4.89 4.89 4.89 | Through
employment Education implementing
enhancing agency -
vocational Yashaswi
skills Academy
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Sl CSR project/ Sector in Projects/ Amount Amount spent Cumulative | Amount spent
No activity which the Programs (1) | of outlay | on the project expenditure direct or
identified project is Local area budget or programs up to the through
covered or others (2) | project or Subheads: reporting implementing
Specify the program (i) Direct period agency
state and wise expenditure
district where | R inlakhs) | on projects or
project or programs
programs were (2)0ver-heads
undertaken  in lakhs)
2 Providing Education | Promoting | Mangalore 2.50 2.50 2.50 | Through
to underprivileged Education implementing
students agency -
Saraswat
Education
Society
3 | Assistance torural | Promoting | Karnataka 1.00 1.00 1.00 | Through
and physically Education implementing
challenged agency —
students in India Ashraya
in education,
vocational training
and income
generation
4 Eye care services Promoting | Bangalore 2.00 2.00 2.00 | Through
health care | Rural implementing
agency —
Globe Eye
Foundation
5 Education support | Promoting | Maharashtra 1.00 1.00 1.00 | Through
to hearing impaired | Education implementing
and mentally agency -
challenged Punyatma
underprivileged Prabhakar
children Sharma Seva
Mandal
6 Supporting the Promoting | Karnataka 4.00 4.00 4.00 | Through
education of Education implementing
children belonging agency
to Indigenous Tribal - Swami
Groups Vivekananda
Youth
Movement
7 Supporting the Promoting | Mysore District 3.55 3.55 3.55 | Through
education of Education implementing
children of Primary agency
Government - Swami
schools and Vivekananda
Anganawadis. Youth
Movement
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Sl. CSR project/ Sector in Projects/ Amount Amount spent Cumulative | Amount spent
No activity which the Programs (1) | of outlay | on the project expenditure direct or
identified project is Local area budget or programs up to the through
covered or others (2) | project or Subheads: reporting implementing
Specify the program (i) Direct period agency
state and wise expenditure
district where | (R inlakhs) | on projects or
project or programs
programs were (2)Over-heads
undertaken (R in lakhs)
8 Health care services | Promoting | Mysore 0.25 0.25 0.25 | Through
Health Care implementing
agency -
west lion
sevaniketan
9 Activities for Promoting | Mysore District 0.02 0.02 0.02 | Direct
the Growth and Education
development of
children of Primary
Government
schools and
Anganawadis.
Total 19.21 19.21 19.21
6 Reason for not spending the prescribed CSR expenditure: Nil
7 CSR Responsibility Statement:
Implementation and monitoring of the CSR policy is in compliance with CSR objectives and policy of the Company.
Aditya M Gokarn S K Welling

Managing Director

DIN:00185458

Date: May 4, 2018
Place: Bengaluru

Regd. Office:

Triton Valves Limited

Sunrise Chambers, 22, Ulsoor Road
Bengaluru — 560 042

CIN: L25119KA1975PLC002867
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Tyre Valve Industry Structure and Developments

Your Company's primary business is the design, manufacture
and sale of automotive tyre valves, valve cores and accessories.
Your Company is a major Original Equipment (OE) supplier to both
the tyre and the automobile industries. The size of the Indian tyre
valve business is estimated at approximately 325 crores in the
organized sector in the period 2017-18. Exports do not constitute
a significant proportion of this turnover. Two manufacturers
contribute over 80% of the total production and sales.

Macroeconomic developments this year have been marked
by swings. In the first half, India's economy temporarily
decelerated as the rest of the world accelerated — even as it
remained the second-best performer amongst major countries,
with strong macroeconomic fundamentals. The reasons were
demonetization, teething difficulties in the new Goods and
Services Tax, high and rising real interest rates, Indian Bankruptcy
Code, an intensifying overhang from the Twin Balance sheet
challenge, and sharp falls in certain food prices that impacted
agricultural incomes. In the second half of the year, the economy
witnessed robust signs of revival. Economic growth improved as
the shocks began to fade, corrective actions were taken, and the
synchronous global economic recovery boosted exports. India's
GDP growth is estimated at 6.7%, This is in line with the 6.75
per cent growth forecast by the Economic Survey and down from
7.1 percent in FY17 with the slowdown being attributed to the
lingering effect of demonetisation and the rollout of the goods
and services tax (GST) in July last year.

The Indian automotive industry produced a total of 26.4 million
vehicles including passenger vehicles, commercial vehicles, and
two and three-wheelers in 2018 (April-February) as against 23
million in the same period of 2017, registering a growth of 14.41
percent. The sale of passenger vehicles grew by 8.04 per cent in
April-February 2018 over the same period last year. Two-wheeler
sales registered a growth of 14.47 percent while the commercial
vehicle segment grew by 19.30 percent year on year. Automobile
exports from India increased by 15.81 percent over the previous
year. Hence, in conclusion, the Financial Year 2017-18 was a
good year for the industry overall with a few small exceptions.

The Indian tyre industry grew by an estimated 8-10 percent in
FY2018, supported by robust growth pick-up across all industry
sub-segments. The growth was supported by improving
demand, rising exports and lower imports, along with automobile
production expected to rise strongly by more than 14 percent, up
from 5.2 percent in FY2017 and 3.2 percent in FY2016. The year
saw a strong traction in OEM volumes during April 2017-January
2018 coupled with the traction in replacement markets after the

GST upheaval. The volume growth estimates for tyres has been
scaled up from an earlier 7-8 percent to 8-10 percent. Exports (in
volumes) grew by 12 percent during 8-month period in FY2018,
riding on the healthy demand across product segments, mainly
the premium tyres. As for imports, the same have declined by
31 percent (volume-wise) in FY2018 post-demonetisation and
re-imposition of Anti-dumping duty (ADD) on import of new
Chinese Truck and Bus Radial (TBR) tyres, for a period of five
years effective from September 18, 2017. In a further boost to
the domestic TBR players, the customs duty on TBR imports has
been increased from 10 percent (effective duty on imports from
several countries under various free trade agreements results in
a lower rate of around 0-9 percent) to 15 percent in the Union
Budget of 2018-19. The 500 basis points increase in import duty
will further curtail the import of Chinese TBR tyres benefiting the
domestic Truck & Bus tyre manufacturers.

Opportunities and Threats

Your Company has a competitive advantage in the market due to
its superior technology, large installed capacities in all product
categories, high quality products, competitive pricing and
approvals from almost every tyre and vehicle manufacturer in the
country. Your Company holds the market leadership position in
every segment that it operates in, from two and three wheelers
to passenger cars, trucks & buses and Off-the-Road vehicles.
These strengths can be leveraged to further widen the customer
base, increase the product offerings and improve the Company's
overall performance.

The market scenario in India is likely to see a steady improvement
in the year ahead. Both the automobile and tyre industries are
expected to perform better than in the previous year. This is
likely to increase the growth opportunities for your Company. In
addition, your Company expects to increase its share of business
in its existing tyre and tube customer accounts during the year.

The primary raw materials used in manufacturing valves are
highly volatile commodities, namely brass which is an alloy of
copper and zinc and synthetic rubber. Continued volatility in the
prices of these commodities can pose a threat to profitability.
The Company is also a net importer; hence volatility in currency
rates also poses a threat to profitability. Competition from China
is also a potential threat.

Segment-wise Performance

The Company manufactures automobile tyre valves, valve cores
and accessories. The sales figures net of discounts and excise
duties in the domestic and export segments are shown below:
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Zin lakhs

vidheaty 2016-17

Overall Sales 22,649.81 20,714.78
Domestic Sales 19,290.45 17,755.88
Export Sales 3,359.36 2,958.9

Outlook

The overall outlook for the Financial Year 2018-19 is positive.
The Company has taken several initiatives to widen its product
offerings and expand its presence in both the domestic and
export markets. Your Company expects to grow faster than the
domestic industry with its new product offerings and competitive
pricing. Operating profits are also expected to increase with
sharp focus on cost cutting and manufacturing efficiencies.

Risks and Concerns

The operations of the Company primarily relate to the
manufacture and sale of automotive tyre valves, cores and
accessories, which contribute a significant proportion of the
sales of the Company. From the risk perspective, this can be
viewed as one of the strategic risk factors, namely a high level
of dependency on a single line of products or a concentrated
group of customers. Operationally, the Company has only one
manufacturing location at Mysore and this can also be viewed
as a significant operational risk. The Board of Directors has been
apprised of the strategic and operational risks identified by the
Company and the initiatives taken to mitigate them.

Internal Control Systems and their Adequacy

The Company has proper and adequate systems of internal
controls. Internal audits and checks are carried out at regular
intervals. An Audit Committee headed by an Independent Director
reviews control systems and their adequacy.

Discussion on Financial Performance with respect to
Operational Performance

The details of the financial performance of the Company appear
in the Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account and other financial
statements. Highlights for the financial year 2017-18 are as

under:

Zin lakhs
2017-18
Net Sales 22,649.81
Other Income 190.80
Profit before Tax 881.86

The financial performance of the Company has been explained in
the Board's Report of the Company for the financial year 2017-
2018 appearing separately.

Human Resources

Human Resources are a key focus area of the Company. The
Company endeavors to attract and develop the best talent
available in each area of its operations. The Company's policy
is to create a conducive environment for nurturing talent and
developing the requisite skills needed to keep pace with the ever-
changing needs of the market. Training is imparted to employees
at all levels and covers both technical and behavioral aspects.

The Industrial Relations scenario during the year under review
was smooth. The Company has an excellent track record in
this regard and has maintained cordial relationships with all its
employees. The Company has signed a Long Term Agreement
(LTA) with the union for a four year period ending September 30,
2018. The employees and the recognized union continue to play
a positive and constructive role in the growth and development
of the Company.

Cautionary Statement

Certain statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis
describing the Company's views about the industry, expectations,
objectives, etc. may be forward looking within the meaning
of applicable laws and regulations. Actual results may differ
materially from those expressed in the statement. Factors like
supply and demand situations, input prices and their availability,
changes in government regulations, economic developments,
etc. may influence the Company's operations or performance.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 4, 2018

S.K.Welling
Chairman

DIN:00050943
Regd. Office:
Triton Valves Limited
Sunrise Chambers, 22, Ulsoor Road
Bengaluru — 560 042
CIN: L25119KA1975PLC002867
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Corporate Governance Report

A report for the financial year ended March 31, 2018 on the
compliance by the Company with the Corporate Governance
requirements under the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 (hereinafter referred to as ‘Listing Regulations'), is furnished
below.

Company's Philosophy on Corporate Governance
The Company has always been committed to the highest

The Board of Directors of the Company consists of 6
Directors out of whom one is Executive, one is Non-
Executive (woman) Non-Independent and four are
Independent Directors. The Chairman of the Board is Non-
executive and Independent.

During the year, the Non-Executive Directors of the
Company had no pecuniary relationship or transactions
with the Company other than sitting fees and commission.

standards of Corporate Governance since its inception. iv. The information as required in terms of SEBI (Listing
Corporate Governance encompasses the values, ethics Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
and the best business practices followed by the Company. 2015 is being regularly placed before the Board.
e o Srbre SOLETANGE . Dunng e ye,te Brd of Diectos et four s
. . . . on May 9, 2017, August 31, 2017, October 25, 2017 and
important instrument of investor protection. Good Corporate ; . ,
. . January 31, 2018. The details of Directors' attendance at
Governance provides an appropriate framework for the Board . .
. . . the Board meetings during the year and at the last Annual
and the Management to achieve the objectives that are in the General Meeting are given below
interest of the Company and the Shareholders. The principles of '
governance provide reasonably good framework which describes  vi. The details of number of directorships in Indian companies
the roles, rights, and responsibilities of the Employees within the and Committee memberships held in Indian public
organization. companies as on March 31, 2018 are furnished below.
None of the Directors on the Board holds directorships in
Board of Directors more than ten public companies. Further, none of them is a
i. The Board of Directors of the Company comprises of an member of more.than ten committees orchairman °f.m°Te
. . . . than five committees across all the public companies in
optimum combination of Executive and Non- Executive . . .
. S . . . which he is a Director.
Directors, which is in conformity with the Companies
Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.
Name of Director Relationship | Category Board Whether | Number of | Memberships of Board
with other Meetings attended | Directorship Committee of
Directors during the year | last AGM in other Companies#
Held | Attended colr:(:)?:ies Member | Chairperson
Mr. Aditya M. Gokarn Son of Mrs. | Managing
Anuradha M | Director 4 4 Yes Nil 1 0
Gokarn
Mrs. Anuradha M. Gokarn | Mother of Non- executive
Mr. Aditya M | Non Independent 4 4 Yes Nil 1 0
Gokarn Director
Dr. B.R.Pai None Non-executive
Independent 4 4 Yes Nil 0 2
Director
Mr. S. K. Welling None Non-executive
Independent 4 4 Yes 1 2 0
Director
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Name of Director Relationship | Category Board Whether | Number of | Memberships of Board
with other Meetings attended | Directorship Committee of
Directors during the year | last AGM in other Companies#
Indian
Held | Attended companies Member | Chairperson
Mr. Tamhant Jain None Non-executive
Independent 4 4 Yes Nil 0 0
Director
Mr. Prashanth Nayak* None Non-executive
Independent NA NA NA 1 0 0
Director

* Mr. Prashanth Nayak, was appointed with effect from May 4, 2018.
*+Includes Meeting attended through audio conference (not counted for quorum)

#Including memberships/chairmanships of Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee in public companies (listed and unlisted) including Triton Valves

Limited.

Brief profile of each of the above Directors are available on the Companys' website www.tritonvalves.com.

The terms and conditions of appointment of the Independent
Directors are disclosed on the website of the Company
at www.tritonvalves.com.

vii.  During the year, the Independent Directors met once on
July 12, 2017, without the presence of Non- Independent
Directors and members of the Management. Independent
Directors at their Meeting, reviewed the performance of
non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole and
assessed the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of
information between the Company management and the
Board for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform
their duties. All the Independent Directors attended the
Meeting.

The Company has in place a familiarization programme
for Independent Directors to familiarize them with
the Company, their roles, rights, responsibilities in
the Company, nature of industry in which the Company
operates and business model of the Company. A copy
of the familiarization programme for Independent
Directors is available on the website at the link:
www. tritonvalves.com.

viii.

Committees of the Board

For the year ended March 31,2018, the Board had five Committees
— Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee,
Stakeholders' Relationship Committee, Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee and Risk Management Committee. The
constitution and terms of reference of the Board Committees are
decided by the Board from time to time. Meeting of each Board
Committee is convened by the respective Committee Chairman.
The role and composition of these Committees, including the
number of meetings held during the financial year and the related
attendance are as follows:

Audit Committee

i. The Audit Committee consists of three members - two of
whom are Independent Directors and one Non- executive

Director. The Chairman of the Committee is an Independent
Director. As on March 31, 2018, the Committee consisted

of:

Dr. B.
Mr. S.
Mrs. A

R. Pai — Chairman
K. Welling — Member

nuradha M. Gokarn — Member

The composition of this Committee is in compliance with
the requirements of Section 177 of the Companies Act,
2013 and Regulation 18 of the Listing Regulations.

The Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee are as set

out he

reunder:

To oversee the financial reporting system of the
Company.

To review with the Management the financial
statements of every quarter before submission to
the Board.

To review the annual financial statements and
Auditors' report thereon.

To review the scope and coverage of the Internal
Audit function and reporting structure.

To review the efficiency of the internal control
system.

To review the findings of any internal investigation
and to report these to the Board.

To review the Company'’s financial and risk
management policies and strategies.

To recommend the appointment of External
Auditors and Internal Auditors and fixation of their
fees.

To monitor the quality of Internal and Statutory
Audit.
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Meetings

During the year, the Committee met four times on May 8, 2017,
August 30, 2017, October 25, 2017 and January 31, 2018. The
Managing Director, Internal Auditors and Statutory Auditors
were invitees to the Meetings. The Company Secretary acts as
Secretary to the Audit Committee.

The details of the Meetings are as follows:

No. of No. of
Name of Directors Meetings held Meetings
attended
Dr. B. R. Pai 4 4
Mr. S. K. Welling 4 4
Mrs. Anuradha M. Gokarn 4 4

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

i. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee consists of
three members- two of whom are Independent Directors
and one Non-executive Director. The Chairman of the
Committee is an Independent Director.

As on March 31, 2018, the Committee consisted of:
Dr. B. R. Pai — Chairman
Mr. S. K. Welling - Member

Mrs. Anuradha M. Gokarn — Member

The composition of this Committee is in compliance with
the requirements of Section 178 of the Companies Act,
2013 and Regulation 19 of the Listing Regulations.

ii. The Terms of Reference of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee are as set out hereunder:

. Identify persons who are qualified to become
Directors and who may be appointed in senior
management in accordance with the criteria laid
down, recommend to the Board their appointment
and removal and shall carry out evaluation of every
Director's performance.

. Formulate the criteria for determining qualifications,
positive attributes and independence of a Director
and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to
the remuneration for the Directors, key managerial
personnel and other employees.

. Ensure that the Board comprises of a balanced
combination of Executive Directors and Non-
executive Directors and also the Independent
Directors.

. Devise framework to ensure that Directors are

inducted through suitable familiarization process
covering their roles, responsibility and liability.

. Oversee the formulation and implementation of
ESOP Schemes, its administration, supervision,
and formulating detailed terms and conditions in
accordance with SEBI Guidelines.

. Decide / approve details of fixed components
and performance linked incentives along with the
performance criteria.

. Devise a policy on Board diversity.

. Formulate the criteria for evaluation of Independent
Directors and the Board.

o The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall,
formulate the Remuneration Policy of the Company.

. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee
shall assist the Board in ensuring that plans are in
place for orderly succession for appointments to the
Board and to senior management.

Meetings
During the year, the Committee met once on May 8, 2017. The
Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the Committee.

The details of the meetings are as follows:

Name of Directors No. of Meetings | No. of Meetings
held attended

Dr. B. R. Pai 1 1

Mr. S. K. Welling 1 1

Mrs. Anuradha M. Gokarn 1 1

Remuneration Policy

The Nomination and Remuneration policy is directed towards
rewarding performance, based on review of achievements. It is
aimed at attracting and retaining high caliber talent. Presently,
the Company does not have a stock options scheme for its
Directors. The Nomination and Remuneration Policy is displayed
on the Company's website at www. tritonvalves.com.

Details of Remuneration paid to Executive Directors / Non-
Executive Directors during the financial year 2017-18.

During the year 2017-18 the Company paid sitting fees to its
Non-Executive Directors for attending Meetings of the Board
and Committee meetings. The Members have at the AGM of
the Company held on August 5, 2016 approved the payment of
commission to the Non-Executive Directors effective April 1,
2016 for a period of five years, within the ceiling of 1% of the
net profits of the Company as computed under the applicable
provisions of the Act.
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Remuneration paid to Directors during 2017-18

R in lakhs)
Name of Directors Sitting | Salaries & Per- | Commis-

Fees quisites sion
Mr. S. K. Welling 2.75 - 3.05
Dr. B. R. Pai 2.75 - 3.05
Mrs. Anuradha M. 2.25 - 3.05
Gokarn
Mr. Tamhant Jain 1.00 - 3.05
Mr. Prashanth - - -
Nayak*
Mr. Aditya M. Gokarn - 85.06+ -

#Mr. Prashanth Nayak, was appointed with effect from May 4, 2018.
*Does not include contribution to PF and Gratuity which are as per the rules of the
Company

Details of Equity Shares of the Company held by the Non-
Executive Directors as on March 31, 2018 are given below:

Name of Directors Number of Shares
Mrs. Anuradha M Gokarn 2,80,041

Dr. B R Pai 1,430

Mr. S K Welling Nil

Mr. Tamhant Jain Nil

The Company has not granted any stock options to its
Directors.

Service contracts, notice period, severance fees:

The tenure of office of the Managing Director is for five years from
the date of appointment, and can be terminated by either party
by giving three months prior written notice of such termination.
There is no separate provision for payment of severance fees.
Non-Executive/Independent Directors’
Disclosures

Compensation and

The Companyhaslaid downthe criteriaformaking paymentstothe
Non-Executive Directors. The details of such criteria are available
in the Nomination and Remuneration Policy disseminated on the
website of the Company at www. tritonvalves.com.

Stakeholders' Relationship Committee

The Stakeholders' Relationship Committee consists of three
members- two of whom are Independent Directors and one
Executive Director. The Chairman of the Committee is an
Independent Director. As on March 31, 2018, the Committee
consisted of:

Dr. B. R. Pai - Chairman
Mr. S. K. Welling - Member
Mr. Aditya M. Gokarn - Member

The composition of this Committee is in compliance with
the requirements of Section 178 of Companies Act, 2013 and
Regulation 20 of the Listing Regulations.

The terms of reference of the Committee inter-alia include
review mechanism adopted by the Company for redressing the
Shareholders complaints and review the status of Complaints of
the stakeholders, if any.

The Committee reviews/approves, processes, standard operating
procedures and initiatives undertaken by the Company relating to
investor services, compliance with requirements related to listing
agreements and corporate governance, shareholding pattern,
periodical transfer/ transmissions of shares, de-materialisation
of shares, issue of duplicate certificates of the securities issued
by the Company and review of status of redressal of complaints,
if any lodged with authorities including SEBI, Registrar of
Companies, etc. by the Shareholders, compliance with applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and various other status.

Meetings:

During the financial year ended March 31, 2018, one Meeting of
the Stakeholders' Relationship Committee was held on January
31, 2018. All the members of the Committee were present. The
Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the Committee.

The particulars of shareholders’ complaints received and
disposed off during the financial year 2017-18 are as follows:

Name of Non-Executive Director
heading the Committee

Dr. B. R. Pai,
Independent Director

Name and Designation of
Compliance Officer

Ms. Apoorva G —
Company Secretary and
Compliance Officer

Pending at the beginning of the Nil

year
Received during the year 34
Resolved during the year 34

Complaints pending at the end of Nil
the year

CSR Committee
As per the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy)
Rules, 2014, Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee
was constituted.

As on March 31, 2018, the CSR Committee consisted of the
following Directors

Mr. S.K.Welling - Chairman

Dr. B. R. Pai - Member

Mrs. Anuradha M. Gokarn - Member
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During the year, the Committee met once on August 31,2017. The
Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the Committee.

The details of the Meetings are as follows:

Name of Directors No. of Meetings No. of Meetings
held attended

Mr. S.K.Welling 1 1

Dr. B. R. Pai 1 1

Mrs. Anuradha M. 1 -

Gokarn

The CSR Policy of the Company is available on the Company's at
website www.tritonvalves.com.

Risk Management Committee
As required under Section 134(3)(n) of the Companies Act, 2013
and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

Annual General Meetings and Extraordinary General Meeting

Regulations, 2015. Risk Management Committee has been
constituted and a policy has been formulated defining roles
and responsibilities of the Committee and reviewing of the risk
management plan to the Committee and such other functions.
The Committee consists of following:

Dr. B. R. Pai - Chairman

Mr. S.K.Welling - Member

Mr. Aditya M. Gokarn - Member

During the financial year ended March 31, 2018, no Meeting was

held.

Risk Management policy of the Company is available on the
Company's website at www.tritonvalves.com.

The details of the Annual General Meetings/Extraordinary General Meeting held in the last three years are as follows:

Year AGM/EGM | Location Date and Time Special Resolutions
2014-15 | AGM The Gateway Hotel, | August 19,2015, | Approval of payment of revised remuneration to Mr. Aditya M
Residency Road, 4.00 pm Gokarn, Managing Director of the Company.
Bangalore-560 025
2015-16 | AGM The Gateway Hotel, August 5, 2016, . Alteration in Memorandum of Association of the Company
Residency Road, 4.00 pm . Adoption of new Articles of Association of the Company in
Bangalore-560 025 conformity with the Companies Act, 2013
. Payment of Commission to Non-Executive Directors of the
Company
. Revision of remuneration to Managing Director
2016-17 | AGM The Gateway Hotel, July 12,2017, . Re-appointment of Dr. BR Pai (DIN 00184753) as an Independent
Residency Road, 4.00 pm Director
Bangalore-560 025 . Re-appointment of Mr. Aditya M Gokarn (DIN: 00185458) as
Managing Director
Increase in Borrowings Powers of the Company

No Postal Ballot was conducted during the financial year
2017-18.

Disclosures

1. Related party Transactions: Related party transactions
have been disclosed under significant accounting policies
and notes forming part of the Financial Statements in
accordance with "IND AS". There were no other material
related party transactions of the Company with its
Promoters, Directors or the Management or their relatives
and subsidiaries and associates. These transactions do
not have any potential conflict with the interest of the
Company at large. The Company has formulated a policy

on dealing with Related Party Transactions and has been
posted on its website and available at the web link: www.
tritonvalves.com.

2. Details of Non-Compliance: There has been no instance
of non-compliance on any matter as regards the rules and
regulations prescribed by the Stock Exchanges, Securities
and Exchange Board of India or any other statutory
authority relating to capital markets during the last three
years. No penalties or strictures have been imposed by
them on the Company.

3. Whistle Blower Policy/Vigil Mechanism: The Company has

adopted a Whistle Blower Policy and has established the
necessary mechanism for employees to report concerns
about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or
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violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct. The Whistle
Blower Policy requires every employee to promptly report
to the Management any actual or possible violation of the
Code or an event he becomes aware of that could affect
the business or reputation of the Company. The disclosure
reported are addressed in the manner and within the
time frames prescribed in the policy. No person has been
denied access to the Audit Committee. Further, the said
policy has been posted on the Company's website at www.
tritonvalves.com.

4. Accounting Treatment in preparation of Financial
Statements: The guidelines/ accounting standards laid
down by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(ICAI) and prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013 have been followed in preparation of the financial
statements of the Company in all material respects.

5. Code of Conduct: The Company has framed and adopted a
Code of Conduct for its Directors and senior management
personnel duly approved by the Board. A copy of the
said Code of Conduct is available on the website of the
Company at www.tritonvalves.com.

All Board Members and senior management personnel
have confirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct for
the financial year 2017-18. A declaration to this effect
signed by the Managing Director and CEO of the Company
is attached.

6. The Company has adopted a Policy on Determination
of Materiality for Disclosures as per Regulation 23 of
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations 2015. Copy of the said Policy is available on
the website of the Company at www.tritonvalves.com.

7. The Company has adopted a Policy on Archival and
Preservation of Documents as per Regulation 9 of SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations 2015. Copy of the said Policy is available on
the website of the Company at www.tritonvalves.com.

8. The Company has complied with all the applicable
mandatory requirements of the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

9. The Company has also complied with the following non-
mandatory requirements as specified in Part E of Schedule
Il SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015:

A. Chairman'’s Office : The Company has Non-Executive
Chairman However, no separate Chairman'’s office in
maintained at the Company's expense.

B. Shareholder Rights — Half yearly results: The
Company's quarterly results are published in the
newspapers namely Business Standard (English)
and Samyukta Karnataka (Kannada) and are further
posted on the Company's website

C. Audit Qualification: There are no qualifications
contained in the Audit Report.

D. Separate Posts of Chairman and CEO/Managing
Director: The Posts of Chairman and Managing
Director are separate.

E. Reporting of Internal Auditors : The Internal Auditors
of the Company report to the Audit Committee and
make detailed presentation at quarterly meetings.

10. Web Links: The Company has no subsidiary and hence
there is no need to frame any policy for determining
“material” subsidiary.

11.  The Company is not dealing in commodity and hence
no disclosure relating to commodity price risks and
commodity hedging activities is made.

12. There are no Shares in demat suspense account or
unclaimed suspense account.

13.  There is no Non-Compliance of any requirement of
Corporate Governance Report of sub-para (2) to (10) of the
Part C of Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Means of Communication:

Quarterly results: Quarterly results are published in one English
daily, Business Standard and in one Kannada daily, Samyukta
Karnataka and are further posted on the Company’s website -
www.tritonvalves.com and sent to the Stock Exchange.

Presentations to institutional investors/analysts: Presentations
made to the institutional investors and analysts after the
declaration of the quarterly, half yearly and annual results are
displayed on the Company's website - www. tritonvalves.com
and sent to the Stock Exchange.

Website: The Company's website - www.tritonvalves.com
contains a separate dedicated section 'Investor Relations' where
shareholders’ information is available.

BSE Corporate Compliance & Listing Centre (the ‘Listing Centre'):
BSE's Listing Centre is a web-based application designed for
corporates. All periodical compliance filings like shareholding
pattern, corporate governance report, media releases, among
others are also filed electronically on the Listing Centre.

Management Discussion and Analysis
The Management Discussion and Analysis is attached to the
Board's Report and is a part of this Annual Report.

Auditors' Certification on Corporate Governance
Compliance certificate from the auditors regarding compliance
of conditions of corporate governance is attached is attached to
the Board's Report and is a part of this Annual Report.
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Secretarial Audit for Reconciliation of Capital:

Stock Market Price Data (BSE)

Secretarial Audits were carried out periodically by a qualified BSE
Practising Company Secretary for reconciling the total admitted -
capital with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Month . Total Number of Equity
¢ - h -0 ngh Low sh traded
Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) and the total ares trade
|ss_ued and Il_stec_i cgpltal. The audlt.conﬂrms that the total issued/ April-17 1820.00 | 1,280.00 79837
paid up capital is in agreement with the total number of shares
held in physical form and the total number of dematerialized May-17 1,809.00 | 1,452.60 36202
shares held with NSDL and CDSL. This audit is carried out
every quarter and the report thereon is submitted to the Stock June-17 1,834.00 | 1,470.00 32940
Exchange and is also placed before the Board of Directors. July-17 1,950.00 | 1,600.10 43297
General Shareholders’ Information: August-17 1,799.90 | 1,489.00 16315
1 | Date, Time | The 42 Annual General Meeting (AGM) September-17 | 1,790.00 | 1,526.00 28911
& Venue of | of the Members of Triton Valves Limited
AGM will be held on Thursday July 26, 2018, October-17 | 1,645.00 | 1,515.00 18728
at The Gateway Hotel, Residency Road, November-17 | 2,049.00 | 1,571.00 45230
Bangalore-560 025 at 4.00 PM.
- - - December-17 | 2,188.00 | 1,761.00 25821
2 | Financial 18t April to 315t March each year
Year January-18 2,794.90 | 2,051.00 48149
3 | Dividend within 30 days from the date of AGM February-18 | 2,222.00 | 1,750.00 32237
Payment
Date March-18 1,957.00 | 1,728.00 10889
4 | Listing BSE Limited
details Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Performance of the Share price of the Company in comparison
Mumbai - 400 001 to the BSE Sensex
The Annual Listing Fee has been paid for 500 75000
the FY 2018-19.
Stock Code | 505978 2000 N\ 25000
Dates July 19, 2018 to July 26, 2018 (both days N —
of Book inclusive) 1500 - 25000
closure
7 | Registrar Canbank Computer Services Limited, 1000 15000
& Transfer 218, J. P Royale, 15t Floor, 2nd Main,
Agents Sampige Road, Malleswaram, Bangalore - w00 <000
560 003 DL DL DL DD s
P +91 80 23469661/62/64/65; F +91 80 & & F ¥ FFK SIS FEEE
23469667 esmmwTriton e=s»S&P BSE Sensex
E: canbankrta@ccsl.co.in
8 | Investor For any shareholder and investor related Distribution of Shareholding as on March 31, 2018
correspon- | query or assistance, please contact: No. of No. of % To total | No. of % To total
dence Mr. Srikanth Shenoy — Chief Financial Equity Shares | number of | Sharehold- | number of
Officer Shares held shares ers Sharehold-
Sunrise Chambers, 22, Ulsoor Road held ers
Bangalore — 560 042
Phone No.: +91 80 25588965/66; Fax No.: 1-500 263,131 25.57 6,342 97.98
+91 80 25586483 501-1000 40,220 4.06 61 0.94
Email: investors@tritonvalves.com 1001-5000 98618 9.96 54 0.83
Ms. Apoorva G — Company Secretary and
Compliance Officer 5001- 43,284 4.37 7 0.11
Sunrise Chambers, 22, Ulsoor Road 10000
Bangalore — 560 042 10001 & 554,774 56.04 9 0.14
Phone No.: +91 80 25588965/66; Fax No.: above
+91 80 25586483
Email: investors@tritonvalves.com Total 990,027 100 6,473 100
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Shareholding Pattern as on March 31, 2018

Category No. of No. of % of
Share Shares Shareholding

holders held

Promoter and 5 499,804 50.48

Promoter group

Mutual Funds 1 18,069 1.83

Financial - - 0.00

Institutions /

Banks

Foreign - - 0.00

Institutional

Investors

Bodies 134 32,810 3.31

Corporate

Individuals 6,002 417,752 42.20

HUF 242 12,869 1.30

Clearing 17 1,155 0.12

Members

Non-Resident 64 7115 0.72

Indians

IEPF Authority 1 453 0.05

Total 6,466 990,027 100.00

As on March 31,2018,958,836 Shares (96.85%) of the Company's
Equity Capital was held in dematerialised form with NSDL and
CDSL and 31,191 shares (3.15%) in physical form. Trading in
Equity Shares of the Company is permitted only in dematerialised
form.

Unclaimed Dividend/Shares

Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Investor
Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit,
Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 (‘the Rules') mandates that
Companies transfer dividend that has remained unclaimed for a
period of seven years from the unpaid dividend account to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF). Further, as per
Section 124(6) of the Act read with the IEPF Rules as amended,
all the shares in respect of which dividend has remained unpaid/
unclaimed for seven consecutive years or more are required to
be transferred to a Demat Account created by the IEPF Authority.
Accordingly, the Company has transferred the unclaimed and
unpaid dividends. Further, the corresponding shares will be
transferred as per the requirements of the IEPF rules, details
of which are provided on the website of the Company at www.
tritonvalves.com

The Company sends periodic intimation to the concerned
shareholders, advising them to lodge their claims with respect
to unclaimed dividends. Shareholders may note that both the
unclaimed dividend and corresponding shares transferred to
IEPF including all benefits accruing on such shares, if any, can
be claimed back from IEPF following the procedure prescribed in
the Rules. No claim shall lie in respect thereof with the Company

Details of Unclaimed Dividend as on March 31, 2018 and due
dates for transfer are as follows

Sl. EY. of Date of Unclaimed | Due Date for
No | Declaration | Declaration | Amount (%) transfer
of Dividend | of Dividend to IEPF
Account
1. 2010-11 July 15, 188,440 | August 21,
2011 2018
2. 2011-12 July 25, 101,233 | August 31,
2012 2019
3. 2012-13 July 12, 125,677 | August 18,
2013 2020
4. 2013-14 August 14, 117,720 | September
2014 20, 2021
5. 2014-15 August 19, 145,876 | September
2015 25,2022
6. 2015-16 August 5, 166,948 | September
2016 12,2023
7. 2016-17 July 12, 204,585 | August 18,
2017 2024

Contact Information

Registered and Corporate Office:

Triton Valves Limited

Sunrise Chambers

22, Ulsoor Road

Bangalore — 560 042

P +91 80 25588965/66; F: +91 80 25586483

W: www.tritonvalves.com; E: investors@tritonvalves.com
CIN: L25119KA1975PLC002867

Factory
Mercara Road Belavadi
Mysore — 570 018

Share Transfer system

The transfer/transmission of shares in physical form is normally
processed and completed within 15 days from the date of receipt
of request. In the case of shares in electronic form, the transfers
are processed by National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL)
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and Central Depository Services Limited (CDSL) through the
respective Depository Participants within 15 days. A Practising
Company Secretary undertakes the audit and review of the
process from time to time as per the applicable laws.

Certificate on Compliance with Code of Conduct
| hereby confirm that the Company has received from its Board

members as well as senior management personnel affirmation
as to compliance with the Code of Conduct for the Financial Year
2017-18.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
S.K.Welling

Chairman
DIN:00050943

Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 4, 2018

Regd. Office:

Triton Valves Limited

Sunrise Chambers, 22, Ulsoor Road
Bengaluru — 560 042

CIN: L25119KA1975PLC002867

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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CEO and CFO Certification
(Pursuant to Regulation 17(8) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015)

To
The Board of Directors,
Triton Valves Limited

We, Aditya M Gokarn, Managing Director and Srikanth Shenoy,
Chief Financial Officer of Triton Valves Limited, to the best of our
knowledge and belief, certify that:

A. We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow
statement for the year ended March 31, 2018 and that to
the best of our knowledge and belief we state that:

1) these statements do not contain any materially
untrue statement or omit any material fact or
contain statements that might be misleading;

2) these statements together present a true and fair
view of the Company's affairs and are in compliance
with existing accounting standards, applicable laws
and regulations.

B. We further state that to the best of our knowledge and
belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during
the year are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the listed
Company's code of conduct.

C. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining
internal controls for financial reporting and that we have

evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of
the Company's pertaining to financial reporting and we
have disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit Committee,
deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal
controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we
have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee:

1) significant changes if any in internal control over
financial reporting during the year;

2) significant changes if any in accounting policies
during the year and that the same have been
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements;
and

3) instances of significant fraud of which we have
become aware and the involvement therein, if
any, of the management or an employee having a
significant role in the Company's internal control
system over financial reporting.

Srikanth Shenoy Aditya M. Gokarn
Chief Financial Officer Managing Director

Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 4, 2018

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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CERTIFICATE
AUDITOR'S CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE CONDITIONS OF
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE THE SEBI (LODR) REGULATIONS, 2015.

To

The Members of
Triton Valves Limited
Bangalore

| have examined all the relevant records of Triton Valves Limited
(‘the Company') for the purpose of certifying the compliances
of the conditions of Corporate Governance by the Company, for
the year ended 31st March, 2018 as stipulated under Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘the Listing Regulations') for
the period 1st April, 2017 to 31st March, 2018.

The compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance is
the responsibility of the Management. My examination was
limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by
the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of
Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of
opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and explanations
given to me, | certify that the Company has complied with the
conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated under the
Listing Regulations.

| further state that such compliance is neither an assurance
as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or
effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the
affairs of the Company.

Vijayakrishna KT
Practising Company Secretary
FCS-1788
CP-980
Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 4, 2018

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

Annual Report 2017-18 51 ’



To

Independent Auditor's Report

The Members of Triton Valves Limited

1.0

2.0

3.0

‘52 Triton Valves Limited

Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial
statements of Triton Valves Limited (“the Company"),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018,
and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended,
and a summary of the significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial
Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the
matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act") with respect to the preparation of these
Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the financial position, financial performance including
other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes
in equity of the Company in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under section
133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS
financial statements based on our audit.

In conducting our audit, we have taken into account
the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing
standards and matters which are required to be included

4.0

5.0

in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules made thereunder and the Order issued under section
143(11) of the Act.

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements
in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified
under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the Ind AS financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the Ind
AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial
control relevant to the Company's preparation of the Ind
AS financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the
Company's Directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the Ind AS financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
Ind AS financial statements give the information required
by the Actin the manner so required and give a true and fair
view in conformity with the Ind AS and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs
of the Company as at March 31, 2018, and its profit, total
comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in
equity for the year ended on that date.

Other Matters

The comparative financial information of the Company
for the year ended March 31, 2017 and the transition
date opening balance sheet as at April 01, 2016 included
in these Ind AS financial statements, are based on the
statutory financial statements prepared in accordance
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with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006
audited by the predecessor auditor whose report for the
year ended March 31, 2017 and March 31, 2016 dated
May 09, 2017 and May 20, 2016 respectively expressed
an unmodified opinion on those financial statements, and
have been restated to comply with Ind AS. Adjustments
made to the previously issued said financial information
prepared in accordance with the Companies (Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2006 to comply with Ind AS have been
audited by us.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements is not
modified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

6.1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on
our audit, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the
information and explanations, which to
the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account
as required by law have been kept by the
Company, so far as it appears from our
examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and
Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of
Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial
statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of
the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations
received from the directors of the Company
as on March 31, 2018 taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2018 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section
164(2) of the Act.

9)

1.2
Order,

With respect to the adequacy of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness
of such controls, refer to our separate Report
in “"Annexure A". Our report expresses an
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and
operating effectiveness of the Company's
internal financial controls over financial
reporting.

With respect to the other matters to be
included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the
impact of pending litigations on its
financial position in its Ind AS financial
statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-
term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any
material foreseeable losses;

iii. There has been no delay in transferring
amounts, required to be transferred, to
the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report)

2016 (“the Order") issued by the Central

Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act,
we give in "Annexure B" a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 04, 2018

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration

No. 117366W/W-100018

S. Ganesh
Partner
Membership No. 204108
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‘54 Triton Valves Limited

Annexure “A" to the Independent Auditor's Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act")

We have audited theinternalfinancial controls over financial
reporting of Triton Valves Limited (“the Company”) as of
March 31, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on
that date.

Financial

Management's Responsibility for Internal

Controls

TheCompany'smanagementisresponsibleforestablishing
and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets,
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Ourresponsibility is to express anopinion onthe Company's
internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under
Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial

4.0

5.0

controls system over financial reporting and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting included obtaining
an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial
control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures
of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could
have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
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financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all
material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively
as at March 31, 2018, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control

stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration

No. 117366W/W-100018

S. Ganesh
Partner
Membership No. 204108

Place: Bengaluru

Date: May 04, 2018

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report

(Referred to in paragraph 6.2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements' section of our report of even
date)

() (@ The Company has maintained proper records
showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

(b)  Some of the fixed assets were physically verified during the
year by the Management in accordance with a programme
of verification, which in our opinion provides for physical
verification of all the fixed assets at reasonable intervals.
According to the information and explanations given
to us no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given
to us and the records examined by us and based on the
examination of the registered sale deed provided to us, we
report that, the title deeds, comprising all the immovable
properties of land and buildings, are held in the name of
the Company as at the balance sheet date. Immovable
properties of land and buildings whose title deeds have
been pledged as security for loans are held in the name of
the Company based on the confirmations directly received
by us from lender.

(i)  As explained to us, the inventories were physically
verified during the year by the Management at
reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies
were noticed on physical verification.

(iiiy  The Company has not granted any loans, secured
or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or other parties covered in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act,
2013.

(iv)  Inour opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has complied
with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of
the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of providing
guarantees. The Company has not granted any
loans or made investments.

(v)  According to the information and explanations given
to us, the Company has not accepted any deposit
during the year. In respect of unclaimed deposits,
the Company has complied with the provisions of
Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013.

(viii)

(vi)  The maintenance of cost records has been specified
by the Central Government under section 148(1) of
the Companies Act, 2013. We have broadly reviewed
the cost records maintained by the Company
pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records and Audit)
Rules, 2014, as amended prescribed by the Central
Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148
of the Companies Act, 2013, and are of the opinion
that, prima facie, the prescribed cost records have
been made and maintained We have, however, not
made a detailed examination of the cost records
with a view to determine whether they are accurate
or complete.

(vii)  According to the information and explanations given
to us, in respect of statutory dues:

(@) The Company has been regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues, including Provident
Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax,
Sales Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty,
Value Added Tax, Goods & Service Tax, cess and
other material statutory dues applicable to it to the
appropriate authorities.

(b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of Provident Fund, Employees’' State
Insurance, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax,
Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Value Added Tax, Goods
& Service Tax, cess and other material statutory
dues in arrears as at March 31, 2018 for a period of
more than six months from the date they became
payable.

(c)  There are no dues of Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service
Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty and Value Added
Tax as on March 31, 2018 on account of disputes
except the following:

Name |Na- Forum | Period Amount | Amount
of Stat- |ture |where |to which |Involved |Unpaid
ute of Dispute | the (Rs.) (Rs.)

Dues |is Pend- | Amount

ing Relates

Income | In- High AY 2010- | 23,27,115 | 23,27,115
Tax come |Courtof |11
Act, Tax Karna-
1961 taka

In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted
in the repayment of loans or borrowings to financial
institutions, banks and government and dues to debenture
holders.
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(xii)

(xiii)

The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public
offer or further public offer (including debt instruments). In
respect of term loans, the term loans have been applied by
the Company during the year for the purposes for which
they were raised.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the
information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the
Company and no material fraud on the Company by its
officers or employees has been noticed or reported during
the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has paid
managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite
approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read
with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting
under clause (xii) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us the Company is in compliance
with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, for
all transactions with the related parties and the details
of related party transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements etc. as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

(xiv) During the year the Company has not made any preferential

allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures and hence reporting under clause
(xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, during the year the Company
has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its
directors or directors of its holding, subsidiary or associate
company or persons connected with them and hence
provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are
not applicable.

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section

45-|A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration

No. 117366W/W-100018

S. Ganesh
Partner
Membership No. 204108

Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 04, 2018

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Balance Sheet

as at March 31, 2018

Zin Lacs

. As at As at As at

Sl Note No. RusVRRRRPOWPISTY  March 31,2017  March 31,2016
ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 3a 5,870.72 6,389.11 5,969.47
Capital work-in-progress 4 887.19 322.70 320.84
Investment property 6 35.10 35.94 36.78
Intangible assets 3b 73.21 60.07 14.20
Financial assets
(i) Investments 5 50.49 43.45 28.97
(i) Loans Ta 75.55 63.62 58.14
Other non-current assets 8a 217.02 145.15 151.79
Total non-current assets 7,209.28 7,060.04 6,580.19
Current assets
Inventories 9 3,336.54 2,786.51 2,361.06
Financial assets
(i) Loans b 23.09 51.21 109.99
(i) Trade receivable 10 3,996.98 3,052.88 3,623.22
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 11a 51.17 57.41 2.57
(iv) Bank balances other than (jii) above 11b 10.61 9.14 9.21
Current tax assets (net) 12 240.69 155.60 72.14
Other current assets 8b 367.01 413.28 310.00
Total current assets 8,026.09 6,526.03 6,388.19
Total 15,235.37 13,586.07 12,968.38
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 13 99.00 99.00 99.00
Other equity 14 6,968.89 6,483.07 5,783.13
Total equity 7,067.89 6,582.07 5,882.13
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 15 1,457.30 1,409.00 1,278.01
Provisions 16a 105.20 107.51 131.16
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 17 125.58 263.23 278.75
Total non-current liabilities 1,688.08 1,779.74 1,687.92
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 18 3,584.07 3,672.08 4,135.04
(i) Trade payables 19 2,306.40 962.42 881.27
(iii) Other financial liabilities 20 466.94 389.52 228.80
Provisions 16b 76.62 66.42 62.08
Other current liabilities 21 45.37 133.82 91.14
Total current liabilities 6,479.40 5,224.26 5,398.33
Total liabilities 8,167.48 7,004.00 7,086.25
Total 15,235.37 13,586.07 12,968.38

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

In terms of our report attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Triton Valves Limited

Chartered Accountants

S. Ganesh S.K.Welling
Partner Chairman
DIN: 00050943

Aditya M. Gokarn
Managing Director
DIN: 00185458

Place : Bengaluru
Date : May 4, 2018

Srikanth Shenoy Apoorva. G
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership No.32683
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Statement of Profit and Loss

for the year ended on March 31, 2018

ZinLacs
. As at As at
Particulars Note No. March 31,2017
Revenue from operations 22 22,649.81 20,714.79
Other income 23 190.80 218.62
Total revenue 22,840.61 20,933.41
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 24 14,291.02 11,027.71
Change in inventories of finished goods and work in progress 25 (577.76) (155.72)
Excise duty on sale of goods 26 570.84 2,027.04
Employee benefits expense 27 2,942.96 2,588.90
Finance costs 29 496.27 494.88
Depreciation and amortization expense 28 1,047.86 991.14
Other expenses 30 3,187.56 2,875.25
Total expenses 21,958.75 19,849.20
Profit before tax 881.86 1,084.21
Tax expense 31
Current tax 369.91 219.50
Deferred tax (141.76) (3.44)
228.15 216.06
Profit for the year 653.72 868.15
Other comprehensive income
i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Remeasurement of defined employee benefit plans 15.12 (38.20)
ii) Income tax on items that will not be reclassified to the profit or loss (4.40) 13.00
Total other comprehensive income 10.72 (25.20)
Total comprehensive income for the year 664.43 842.95
Earnings per equity share 32
i) Basic 66.03 87.69
i) Diluted 66.03 87.69

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

In terms of our report attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Triton Valves Limited

S. Ganesh S.K.Welling
Partner Chairman
DIN: 00050943

Srikanth Shenoy
Chief Financial Officer

Aditya M. Gokarn
Managing Director
DIN: 00185458

Apoorva. G
Company Secretary
Membership No.32683

Place : Bengaluru
Date : May 4, 2018
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Cash flow statement

for the year ended on March 31, 2018

Zin Lacs

Particulars IR EREETR TR  For the year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31,2017

Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before tax 881.86 1,084.21
Depreciation / amortization on continuing operations 1,047.86 991.14
Interest income (3.97) (9.09)
Dividend income (0.19) (0.25)
ocl 15.12 (38.20)
Loss / (profit) on sale of fixed assets (0.43) (1.10)
Sundry debtors (written off) / write back 107.82 (125.20)
Sundry creditors (written back) / written off (0.21) -
Provision for bad and doubtful debts 135.00 45.00
Fixed assets written off 17.81 -
Investments (7.13) (14.48)
Finance costs 496.27 494.88
Operating profit before working capital changes 2,689.81 2,426.91
Movements in working capital :
Increase / (decrease) in trade payables 1,343.98 81.15
Increase / (decrease) in other current liabilities (87.19) 45.57
Decrease / (increase) in trade receivables (1,186.92) 550.54
Decrease / (increase) in inventories (550.03) (425.45)
Decrease / (increase) long term loans and advances (11.93) (5.48)
Decrease / (increase) short term loans and advances 74.39 (44.50)
Increase / (decrease) in long-term provisions (2.31) (23.65)
Increase / (decrease) in short-term provisions 10.20 4.34
Cash generated from / (used in) operations 2,280.00 2,609.43
Direct taxes paid (net of refunds) (455.00) (302.96)
Net cash flow from / (used in) operating activities (A) 1,825.00 2,306.47
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of fixed assets, including CWIP and capital advances (1,196.98) (1,451.03)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 1.89 1.10
Interest received 3.97 9.09
Dividends received 0.19 0.25
Net cash flow from / (used in) investing activities (B) (1,190.93) (1,440.59)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 500.00 500.00
Repayment of long-term borrowings (400.82) (225.26)
Proceeds from short-term borrowings (88.02) (462.97)
Proceeds from long term borrowings / (loan from related party) 25.00 15.00
Interest paid (496.27) (494.88)
Dividends paid on equity shares (148.50) (118.80)
Tax on equity dividend paid (30.23) (24.19)
Tax on preference dividend paid
Net cash flow from / (used in) in financing activities (C) (638.84) (811.10)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C) 4.77) 54.78
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 66.55 11.78
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 61.78 66.56
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 3.33 1.71
With banks - on current account 47.84 55.70
- unpaid dividend accounts 10.61 9.14
Total cash and cash equivalents 61.78 66.55

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

In terms of our report attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Triton Valves Limited

Chartered Accountants

S. Ganesh S.K.Welling Aditya M. Gokarn

Partner Chairman Managing Director
DIN: 00050943 DIN: 00185458

Place : Bengaluru Srikanth Shenoy Apoorva. G

Date : May 4, 2018 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Membership No.32683
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Statement of changes

in equity during the year ended March 31, 2018

a)  Equity share capital ZinLacs

Particulars Amount
Balance as at April 1,2016 99.00
Changes during the year -
Balance as at March 31, 2017 99.00
Changes during the year -
Balance as at March 31, 2018 99.00

b)  Other equity ZinlLacs

Reserves and surplus Items of other
comprehensive
income
Particulars Total
Securities General Retained Remeasurement
premium reserve earnings of defined
benefits plan

As at April 1, 2016 149.40 4,559.34 1,074.39 - 5,783.13
Transfer to General reserve - 300.00 (300.00) - -
Profit for the year - 868.13 - 868.13
Other comprehensive income net of tax - - - (25.20) (25.20)
Dividend proposed in the previous year, paid - - (118.80) - (118.80)
Tax impact on dividend - - (24.19) - (24.19)
As at March 31, 2017 149.40 4,859.34 1,499.53 (25.20) 6,483.07
Profit for the year - - 653.72 - 653.72
Other comprehensive income net of tax - - - 10.72 10.72
Dividend proposed and paid - - (148.50) - (148.50)
Tax impact on proposed dividend - - (30.11) - (30.11)
As at March 31, 2018 149.40 4,859.34 1,974.64 (14.48) 6,968.89

The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

In terms of our report attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

S. Ganesh

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Triton Valves Limited

S.K.Welling

Aditya M. Gokarn

Chairman
DIN: 00050943

Srikanth Shenoy
Chief Financial Officer

Partner Managing Director

DIN: 00185458

Apoorva. G
Company Secretary
Membership No.32683

Place : Bengaluru
Date : May 4, 2018
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2.2

‘62 Triton Valves Limited

Corporate information

Triton Valves Limited (“the Company”) was incorporated
on September 10, 1975 as a Limited Company with its
registered office at Bangalore. The Company is engaged
in the business of manufacturing of valves and cores for
automobile tubes and supplies to tyre, tube and original
equipment manufacturers. The Company had a technical
collaboration with M/s. Pingeot Bardin S.A. of France for
the first five years. The manufacturing facility was set up in
the Belavadi Industrial Estate at Mysore. The Company is a
market leader for its products since the year 1992.

Significant accounting policies

Statement of compliance

In accordance with the notification issued by the Ministry
of Corporate Affairs, the Company has adopted Indian
Accounting Standards (referred to as “Ind AS") notified
under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 with effect from April 1, 2017.

For periods up to and including the year ended March 31,
2017, the Company has prepared its financial statements
in accordance with accounting standards notified under
the Section 133 of the Companies, Act, 2013 read together
with paragraph 7 of Companies Rules, 2014 (“Indian
GAAP"). The date of transition to Ind AS is April 1, 2016.

Basis of preparation and presentation

The financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial assets and
liabilities which are measured at fair values and defined
benefit plan — plan assets measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies below:-

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes
into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if
market participants would consider those characteristics
into account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/

23

or disclosure purposes in these financial statements is
determined on such a basis, except for measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value,
such as net realizable value in Ind AS 2 or value in use in
Ind AS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorized into Level 1, 2, or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

Use of estimates and judgement

The preparation of these financial statements in
conformity with the recognition and measurement
principles of Ind AS requires the management of the
Company to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities,
disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as at the date
of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
income and expense for the periods presented. Estimates
and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized
in the period in which the estimates are revised and future
periods are affected.

Key source of estimation of uncertainty at the date of
the financial statements, which may cause a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, is in respect of percentage of
completion of contracts and recognition of probable loss,
useful lives of property, plant and equipment, provision for
income tax and valuation of deferred tax assets, provision
for warranty and other provisions and contingent liabilities.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
The Company reviews the useful life of property, plant
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2.4

2.5

and equipment at the end of each reporting period. This
reassessment may result in change in depreciation
expense in future periods.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present
obligation as aresult of past event and it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made.
Provisions (excluding retirement benefits and compensated
absences) are not discounted to its present value and are
determined based on best estimate required to settle the
obligation at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed
at each balance sheet date adjusted to reflect the current
best estimates. Contingent liabilities are not recognized
in the financial statements. A contingent asset is neither
recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of goods have passed to the buyer,
and when the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.
Amounts disclosed as revenue are inclusive of excise duty
and net of returns, trade allowances, rebates, and value
added items.

Other income

Interestincomeis recognized as itaccrues in the statement
of profit and loss, using effective interest method. Dividend
income is accounted for when the right to receive the
payment is established. Export benefits are accounted for,
in the year of exports, based on eligibility and when there
is no uncertainty in receiving the same.

Foreign currencies
The functional currency of the Company is Indian Rupees.

Income and expenses in foreign currencies are recorded at
exchanges rates prevailing on the date of the transaction.
Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are
translated at the exchange rate prevailing on the balance
sheet date and exchange gains and losses arising
on settlement and restatement are recognized in the
statement of profit and loss.

2.6

2.7

Leases

Lease arrangements where the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of an asset substantially vests with the
lessor, are recognized as operating lease. Operating lease
payments are recognized on a straight line basis over the
lease term, unless the lease agreement explicitly states
that increase is on account of inflation in the statement of
profit and loss.

Employee benefits

Employee benefits include contribution to provident
fund, superannuation fund, gratuity fund, compensated
absences and employee state insurance scheme.

Retirement benefit cost and termination benefits
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans
are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of
providing benefits is determined using the projected unit
credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at
the end of each annual reporting period. Remeasurement,
comprising actuarial gains and losses and the return
on plan assets (excluding net interest), is reflected
immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit
recognised in other comprehensive income in the period
in which they occur. Remeasurement recognized in other
comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained
earnings and is not reclassified to the statement of profit
and loss. Past service cost is recognized in the statement
of profit and loss in the period of a plan amendment. Net
interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the
beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability or
asset. Defined benefit costs are categorized as follows:

. service cost (including current service cost, past
service cost, as well as gains and losses on
curtailments and settlements);

. net interest expense or income; and

. remeasurement

The Company presents the first two components of defined
benefit costs in the statement of profit and loss in the line

item 'Employee benefits expense'. Curtailment gains and
losses are accounted for as past service costs.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the
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balance sheet represents the actual deficit or surplus in
the Company'’s defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting
from this calculation is limited to the present value of any
economic benefits available in the form of refunds from
the plans or reductions in future contributions to the plans.

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the
earlier of when the entity can no longer withdraw the offer
of the termination benefit and when the entity recognizes
any related restructuring costs.

Defined contribution plan

Contribution to defined contribution plans are recognised
as expense when employees have rendered services
entitling them to such benefits.

Compensated absences

Compensated absences which are not expected to occur
within twelve months after the end of the period in which
the employee renders the related services are recognized
as an actuarially determined liability at the present value
of the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax. Current and deferred tax are
recognized in the statement of profit and loss, except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax' as
reported in the statement of profit and loss because of
items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in
other years and items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Company's current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised

2.9

for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilized. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternate Tax ("MAT")
paid in accordance with the tax laws in India, which is likely
to give future economic benefits in the form of availability
of set-off against future tax liability. Accordingly, MAT
is recognised as deferred tax asset in the Balance sheet
when the asset can be measured reliably and it is probable
that the future economic benefit associated with the asset
will be realized.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at costs less
accumulated depreciation (other than freehold land) and
impairment loss, if any.

The costincludes purchase price net of any trade discounts
and rebates, any import duties and other taxes (other than
those subsequently recoverable from the tax authorities),
any directly attributable expenditure on making the asset
ready for its intended use, other incidental expenses
and interest on borrowings attributable to acquisition of
qualifying fixed assets up to the date the asset is ready for
its intended use. Subsequent expenditure on fixed assets
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after its purchase / completion is capitalized only if such
expenditure results in an increase in the future benefits
from such asset beyond its previously assessed standard
of performance.

Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset,
or other amount substituted for cost, less its estimated
residual value.

Depreciation is provided for property, plant and equipment
on the straight-line method over the estimated useful life
from the date the assets are ready for intended use. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for
on a prospective basis.

The estimated useful lives are as mentioned below:

Assets costing less than 2 5,000 each are fully depreciated
in the year of capitalization

For transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to
continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant
and equipment recognised as of April 1, 2016 (transition
date) measured as per the previous GAAP and use that
carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition date.

Capital work in progress

Amount paid towards the acquisition of property, plant
and equipment outstanding as of each reporting date and
the cost of property, plant and equipment not ready for
intended use before such date are disclosed under capital
work-in-progress.

2.10

2.12

The capital work-in-progress are carried at cost,
comprising direct cost, related incidental expenses and
attributable interest.

Investment property

Investment properties are properties held to earn rental
and/or for capital appreciation. Investment properties
are measured initially at cost including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are measured in accordance with Ind AS 16's requirements
for cost mode.

An investment property is derecognized upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of assets)

Type of asset Method Useful lives is included in the statement of profit and loss in the period
- - in which property is derecognized
Factory and office Straight line | 2 to 40
buildings (Including years For transition to Ind AS the company has elected to
temporary structures) continue with the carrying value of investment property
Plant and equipment Straight line | 3to 14 recognized as of April 1, 2016 (transition date) measured
years as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its
Computer equipment Straight line | 2 to 5 years deemed cost as of the transition date.
Office equipment Straight line | 210 15 2.11 Intangible assets
years Intangible assets purchased are measured at cost as of
Vehicles Straight line | 3 to 8 years the date of acquisition, as applicable, less accumulated
- — amortization and accumulated impairment, if any.
Furniture and fixtures Straight line | 2to 10
years Intangible assets are amortized on a straight line basis

over their estimated useful lives from the date that they
are available for use.

The estimated useful lives of the intangible assets and
the amortization period are reviewed at the end of each
financial year and the amortization period is revised to
reflect the changed pattern, if any.

Impairment
Financial assets (other than a fair value)

The Company assesses at each date of balance sheet
whether a financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired. Ind AS 109 requires expected credit losses
to be measured through a loss allowance. The Company
recognizes lifetime expected losses for all contract assets
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G

and / or all trade receivables that do not constitute a
financing transaction. For all other financial assets,
expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal
to the 12 month expected credit losses or at an amount
equal to the life time expected credit losses if the credit
risk on the financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition.

Non-financial assets

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets with
finite life are evaluated for recoverability whenever there
is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount (i.e. higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the
value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis
unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are
largely independent of those from other assets. In such
cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash
generating unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognized in the statement of profit
and loss.

Inventory

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and the net
realizable value. Cost includes all charges in bringing
the goods to the point of sale, including octroi and other
levies, transit insurance and receiving charges. Cost of
inventories are determined on a weighted average basis.
Net realizable value represents the estimated selling price
for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and
costs necessary to make the sale.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, it is probable that the Company will be required
to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
ofthe considerationrequired to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated
to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the

Triton Valves Limited
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A)

present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the
time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to
settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a
third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is
virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and
the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are recognized when the
Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. Financial assets and liabilities are
initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through statement
of profit and loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value measured on initial recognition of financial asset or
financial liability.

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with
banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an
original maturity of three months or less from the date
of acquisition), highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Financial assets at amortized cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized
cost if these financial assets are held within a business
whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through other compre-
hensive income (FVTOCI)

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income if these financial assets are held
within a business whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset
gives rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.
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Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss
(FVTPL) Financial assets are measured at fair value
through profit and loss unless it is measured at amortized
cost or at fair value through other comprehensive
income on initial recognition. The transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
and liabilities at fair value through profit and loss are
immediately recognized in statement of profit and loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses

The fair value of foreign assets denominated in a foreign
currency is determined in that foreign currency and
translated at the spot rate at the end of each reporting
period. For the foreign currency denominated financial
assets measured at amortized cost and FVTPL, the
exchange differences are recognized in statement of profit
and loss.

Financial liabilities and equity
Financial liabilities at amortized cost

Financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using
effective interest method.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is contract that evidences residual
interest in the assets of the company after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments recognised by the
Company are recognised at the proceeds received net off
direct issue cost.

Foreign exchange gains and losses

For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign
currency and are measured at amortized cost at the end
of each reporting period, the foreign exchange gains and
losses are determined based on the amortized cost of the
instruments and are recognized in other income.

The fair value of financial liabilities denominated in a
foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and
translated at the spot rate at the end of the reporting period.
For financial liabilities that are measured as at FVTPL, the
foreign exchange component forms part of the fair value
gains or losses and is recognized in the profit and loss.

Earnings per share (EPS)
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the
profit / (loss) after tax (including the post-tax effect of
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extraordinary items, if any) by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the
profit / (loss) after tax (including the post-tax effect
of extraordinary items, if any as adjusted for dividend,
interest and other charges to expense or income relating
to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted
average number of equity shares considered for deriving
basic earnings per share and the weighted average
number of equity shares which could have been issued on
the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if
their conversion to equity shares would decrease the
net profit per share from continuing ordinary operations.
Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to be converted
as at the beginning of the period, unless they have been
issued at a later date. The dilutive potential equity shares
are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the shares
been actually issued at fair value (i.e. average market value
of the outstanding shares). Dilutive potential equity shares
are determined independently for each period presented.
The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity
shares are adjusted for share splits / reverse share splits
and bonus shares, as appropriate.

Segment reporting

The Company identifies primary segments based on the
dominant source, nature of risks and returns and the
internal organization and management reporting structure.
The operating segments are the segments for which
separate financial information is available and for which
operating profit/loss amounts are evaluated regularly by
the executive Management in deciding how to allocate
resources and in assessing performance.

The Company has only one reportable business segment,
which is automobile tyre and tube valves, cores and
accessories and operates in a single business segment.
Accordingly, the amounts appearing in the financial
statements relate to the company's singe business
segment.

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

Appendix B to Ind AS 21, Foreign currency transactions
and advance consideration: On March 28, 2018, Ministry
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of Corporate Affairs (“"MCA") has notified the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2018
containing Appendix B to Ind AS 21, Foreign currency
transactions and advance consideration which clarifies
the date of the transaction for the purpose of determining
the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income, when an entity has received
or paid advance consideration in a foreign currency. The
amendment will come into force from April 1, 2018. The
Company is evaluating the effect of this on the financial
statements.

Ind AS 115- Revenue from Contract with Customers: On
March 28, 2018, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs notified
Ind AS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers. The
standard replaces Ind AS 11 Construction Contracts and
Ind AS 18 Revenue. The new standard applies to contracts
with customers. The core principle of the new standard is
that an entity should recognize revenue to depict transfer
of promised goods or services to customers in an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects

to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Further, the new standard requires enhanced disclosures
about the nature, timing and uncertainty of revenues
and cash flows arising from the entity's contracts with
customers.

The new standard offers a range of transition options.
An entity can choose to apply the new standard to its
historical transactions and retrospectively adjust each
comparative period. Alternatively, an entity can recognize
the cumulative effect of applying the new standard at the
date of initial application - and make no adjustments to its
comparative information. The chosen transition option can
have a significant effect on revenue trends in the financial
statements. A change in the timing of revenue recognition
may require a corresponding change in the timing of
recognition of related costs. The standard is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2018. The
Company is currently evaluating the requirements of Ind
AS 115, and has not yet determined the impact on the
financial statements.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




Statutory Reports Financial Repo

Corporate Overview

¥8°0¢€ 0,'Cce 61,88
68°¢C 60°G¢C 959'8. sisyio
¢L9ElL 2069 8616 sbuip|ing
€181 65'8¢¢C S9°ELL A1uiyoew g jueld
910¢ 10T 810¢
‘Liudy | ‘LE Yorew | ‘LE Yote ssaiboid
1e sy je sy je sy -ul-)iom jeude)
ocvlL 0cvlL L¥'696'G 08'29 LL9¢ ve'L 9L'LL L9Z8L'E |85'8¢5C |LE0SL 910z ‘L IUdV 1Y
20709 20709 LL'68E9 8019 9¢g’1L¢ ye6L 2191 OL'68Y'E |69829C |.€0§G1L L10T ‘LE YdteN v
LcesL LceL TL°0.8'G 6€ LY L6'vC 18'8L 6CCL 62950 |09°095'C |LE0GL 810C 'LE YdoleN 1y
A_uiyoew
saInIxy 3 wdwdinba | yuawdinba pue
|lexol alemyjos |elol aInuuing | S{PPIYIA 0140 1Pindwo) we|d sbuipjing pue anjea buifiien
GC°0€ GZ'0€ 0¥°266'L viov 85°0L 068 cLLL 08'€S9'L |9z¢Cle - 8L0T ‘LE Yotew v
sjasse
10 JJ0-211IM / |esodsip
- - 969 - - - 0€0 929 - - 9y} uo pajeulwt|q
L¢0C L¢0C 28920'L €89l €89 €6'S L6°2 8.'898 Ye'LEL - 1edk ayy 1oy abieyy
vool voolL vL'LL6 LEET SL'Y 16C LL'Y 8¢’L08 [AMi4] - L102T ‘LE Yoren v
sjasse Jo |esodsip
- - (AR - - - cLe - - - 9y1 uo pajeulw|y
00l 00l 92'086 LE€T LY 16C YAV 8¢'L08 cLovlL - leak ayy 1oy abieyn
- - - - - - - - - - 910Z ‘L Judy 1y
A_uiyoew uolnjezijowe
sainixi 3 wawdinba | yuswdinba pue / uoneroaidap
|eroL alemyos |erol ainpuing | SIPIYIA a0 1Pndwo) weld sbuip|ing pue palejnwindoy
9'eolL 9r'eolL TL'898'L €578 6°G€E 112 Lo've 60°0LL'Y |98CE8'C |LE0SL 8L0CT ‘LE YoteN v
- - 9L - - - - 9L - - sjuswisnlipe / sjesodsiq
- - ¥6'€¢C - - - LGS0 EV'Ee - - 410 USIUM
GE'EE GE'ee JRADRA AN0] 8€'6 9¥'s vey 09'v¥v S¥'€9 suonippy
LL'0L LL'0L G2'99€'L 6€°L8 LL'9C LECC 8202 8€°06Z'V |Ll¥'69L'C |LE0SL 2102 ‘LE Yorew v
- - zLe - - - zLe - - - s|esods|g
L6°GS 1695 06'66€'L 65'v¢ - L0°GL ¥9'LL L. J0L'L  |€g0ove - suonippy
(A4l iradl 1¥'696'S 0829 LL9Z ve'L 9L'LL L9'Z8L'E |85'82S'C |LlEOSL 910z ‘L |udv v
A_uiyoew
saInIxuy 3 wawdinba | yuawdinba pue
|eloL ?alemyos |elol ainjuing | S9RIYIA 20130 J9indwo) jueld sbuipjing pue 1509 pawdaq
syasse a|qibuelu| (q syasse a|qibue] (e

soe ul 2

€

SjuaWalels [eloueuly ay) Jo Jed Buiwioy

S9)0N

69

Annual Report 2017-18




Notes

forming part of the financial statements

5. Investments
Non-current other investments

Name of the Company

As at March 31, 2018

As at March 31, 2017

ZinLacs

As at April 1, 2016

No. of shares  Amount  No. of shares ~ Amount
A. At Fair Value
(i) Quoted investments
Investments in equity instruments
Apollo Tyres Limited 500 1.38 500 1.04 500 0.87
T.V.S. Srichakra Tyre Limited 100 3.20 100 3.49 100 2.31
MRF Limited 50 36.15 50 30.36 50 19.15
J.K.Tyre & Industries Limited 300 0.48 300 0.39 300 0.25
Ceat Limited 37 0.56 37 0.49 37 0.40
Goodyear India Limited 200 2.22 200 1.69 200 0.96
Govind Rubber Limited 200 0.03 200 0.07 200 0.03
Modi Rubber Limited 50 0.04 50 0.05 50 0.02
ICICI Bank Limited 2,244 6.25 2,040 5.65 2,040 4.83
Bengal & Assam Company Limited 4 0.08 4 0.07 4 0.02
J.K.Agri Genetics Limited 3 0.03 3 0.02 3 0.01
Summit Securities Limited 2 0.02 2 0.01 2 0.01
Dhampur Sugar Mills Limited 1 0.01 1 0.01 1 0.01
Florence Investech Limited 2 0.04 2 0.02 2 0.01
Total Quoted Investments 3,693 50.49 3,489 43.36 3,489 28.88
(ii) Unquoted Investments -
Investment in Equity instruments
Dewan Tyres Limited. 100 - 100 0.01 100 0.01
Bombay Tyres International Limited 50 - 50 0.01 50 0.01
Dunlop India Limited 100 - 100 0.07 100 0.07
Total Unquoted Investments 250 - 250 0.09 250 0.09
Aggregate amount of Quoted investments (i) 50.49 43.36 28.88
Aggregate amount of Unquoted
investments (ii) - 0.09 0.09
Total 50.49 43.45 28.97
6. Investment property ZinLacs
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1,2016
Deemed cost
At the beginning of the year 36.78 36.78 36.78
Additions = - -
Deletions = - -
At the end of the year 36.78 36.78 36.78
Accumulated depreciation
Up to beginning of the year 0.84 - -
Charge for the year 0.84 0.84 -
Up to the end of the year 1.68 0.84 -
Net block 35.10 35.94 36.78
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Fair value of investment property

The fair value of investment property as at March 31, 2018, March 31, 2017 and April 1, 2016 has been arrived at, on the basis of
valuation carried out as on the respective dates by M/s. R.K Makhija & Co., independent valuer not related to the company. M/s. R.K
Makhija & Co., are registered with the authority which governs the valuers in India, and they have appropriate qualifications and recent
experience in the valuation of properties in the relevant locations. The residential unit in in Bangalore, India, the fair value of which was
derived using the market comparable approach, based on recent market prices without any significant adjustments being made to the

market observable data.

Details of the investment property and information about the fair value hierarchy as at March 31, 2018, March 31, 2017 and April 1,

2016 are:
Zin Lacs
March 31, 2018 March 31,2017 April 1,2016
a) Residential Property located @ Bangalore / Level of Hierarchy Level 2 Level 2 Level 2
b) Carrying value 35.10 35.94 36.78
c) Fair value 226.80 239.40 238.50
7. Loans
ZinLacs
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1,2016
a. Non-current
Secured, considered good
Security deposits 75.55 63.62 58.14
Total 75.55 63.62 58.14
b. Current
Secured, considered good
a) Security deposits 10.00 32.66 91.42
b) Others - Loans and advances to employees 13.09 18.55 18.57
Total 23.09 51.21 109.99
8.  Other assets
Zin Lacs
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1,2016
Other assets consists of the following
a. Non-current
a) Capital advances (unsecured, considered good) 217.02 145.15 151.79
Total 217.02 145.15 151.79
b. Current
a) Advances to suppliers 72.36 130.29 128.53
b) Prepaid expense 33.04 34.50 28.69
c¢) Balance with government / statutory authorities 140.58 207.28 151.04
d) Others 121.03 41.21 1.74
Total 367.01 413.28 310.00
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9. Inventories

Valued at lower of cost and net realizable value
Raw materials

Work-in-progress

Finished goods (Refer Note below)

Packing materials

Stores and spares

Total

ZinlLacs

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1,2016
969.55 1,040.86 827.55
1,241.74 747.80 592.30
560.48 476.66 476.44

11.52 11.64 13.28

553.25 509.55 451.49
3,336.54 2,786.51 2,361.06

Note : Includes provision made for excise duty payable on unsold stock of finished goods as at March 31, 2017 and April 1, 2016

10. Trade receivables

ZinLacs
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1,2016
Secured, considered good - - -
Unsecured, considered good 3,996.98 2,999.13 3,523.22
Doubtful 180.00 98.75 -
4,176.98 3,097.88 3,523.22
Provision for doubtful trade receivables 180.00 45.00 -
Total 3,996.98 3,052.88 3,523.22
11. Cash and bank balances
ZinLacs
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1,2016
a. Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks 47.84 55.70 1.47
Cash on hand 3.38 1.71 1.10
Total 51.17 57.41 2.57
b. Other bank balances
Unpaid dividend accounts 10.61 9.14 9.21
Total 10.61 9.14 9.21
12. Trade receivables
ZinlLacs
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1,2016
Advance income-tax (net off provision for taxation) 610.60 375.10 72.14
Less : Income tax for the year (369.91) (219.50) -
Tax receivable 240.69 155.60 72.14
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13. Share capital

ZinLacs
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
a) Authorized shares (Nos.)
50,00,000 (March 31,2017 : 50,00,000 ; April 1, 2016 : 50,00,000) 500.00 500.00 500.00
Equity shares of Rs.10 each
b) Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares (Nos.)
9,90,027 (March 31,2017 :9,90,027 ; April 1, 2016 : 9,90,027) Equity 99.00 99.00 99.00
shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up
Total issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital 99.00 99.00 99.00
c) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period
Name of the Company 2016-2017
 Nes  Amount Nos. Amount
Equity shares
At the beginning of the period 9,90,027 99.00 9,90,027 99.00
Outstanding at the end of the period 9,90,027 99.00 9,90,027 99.00

d) Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

i. The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs 10/- per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled
to one vote per share.

ii. Inevent of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares would be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Compa-
ny, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the
shareholders.

iii. The dividend for the year ended March 31, 2018, declared by the Board of Directors is Rs 15/- per equity share, subject to the
approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. This would result in a cash outflow of ¥ 148.50 lakhs
including dividend tax during the Financial year ended 2018-19.

e) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

March 31, 2017 March 31,2016
m Nos. Amount Nos. Amount
Equity shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid
Mrs. Anuradha Maruti Gokarn 280,041 28.29% 280,041 28.29% 280,041 28.29%
Mrs. Nirmala Murthy 112506  11.36% 112,506  11.36% 112,506 11.36%
Mr. K Raghunath Shenoy 54,000 5.45% 54,000 5.45% 54,000 5.45%
14. Other equity
Zin Lacs
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
Securities premium account 149.40 149.40 149.40
General reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year 4,859.34 4,559.34 4,259.34
Add: Transfer from the Statement of Profit & Loss - 300.00 300.00
Closing balance 4,859.34 4,859.34 4,559.34
Retained earnings 1,960.15 1,474.33 1,074.39
Total 6,968.89 6,483.07 5,783.13
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15. Borrowings

Zin Lacs

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1,2016
Non-current: At amortised cost
Term loans (secured)
From banks (Refer Note (i) below) 1,017.30 994.00 878.01
Loans from the related parties (Unsecured)
Loan from Director (Refer note (ii) below) 440.00 415.00 400.00
Total 1,457.30 1,409.00 1,278.01

i. Term loans from banks:

a) Term loan-I from HDFC Bank carrying interest rate @ 10.55% p.a. to 10.75% p.a (for March 31, 2018, March 31, 2017 and April
01, 2016), repayable in 48 equated monthly instalments beginning from September, 2016.

b) Term loan-Il from HDFC Bank carrying interest rate @ 10.55% p.a. to 10.75% p.a (for March 31, 2018, March 31, 2017 and April
01, 2016), repayable in 59 equated monthly instalments beginning from March 2017.

¢) Term loan from Yes Bank carrying interest rate @ 9.10% p.a., repayable in 60 equated monthly installments.

d) Term loan from Kotak Bank carrying interest rate @ 12 p.a. to 12.15%, repayable in 50 equated monthly instalments beginning
from June, 2013. Entire loan repaid by July 2017.

by way of First pari passu charge, on hypothecation of all the plant and machinery at the Company's existing plant at Belavadi
Industrial Area and Hebbal Industrial Estate, Mysore, Company's Registered Office and Company Flat at Bangalore,

e) by way of First pari passu charge, on Equitable mortgage of land and buildings at Belavadi Industrial Area and Hebbal Industrial
area, Mysore, Company's Registered Office and Company Flat at Bangalore,

f) by way of Second paripassu charge, on hypothecation of Company's entire current assets including stocks of raw material,
semi finished goods and finished goods, consumable stores and spares and such other movables, book debts, bills whether
documentary,

g) further secured by personal guarantee of the Managing Director for entire loan.
ii. Loan from Director : It carries an Interest @ 10.5% to 9.10% (for March 31, 2018, March 31, 2017 and April 01, 2016)

16. Provisions

Zin Lacs
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1,2016
a) Non current
Employee benefits (refer note (i) below) 105.20 107.51 131.16
b) Current
Employee benefits (refer note (i) below)
Provision for gratuity (Refer note 40) 36.56 45.97 40.97
Provision for leave benefits 40.06 20.45 21.11
Total 76.62 66.42 62.08
181.82 173.93 193.24

Note (i): The provisions for employee benefits include annual leave and vested long service leave entitlements accrued. For disclosures,
refer note no. 40
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17. Deferred tax balances

Zin Lacs
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
Deferred tax assets 197.60 150.92 63.89
Deferred tax liabilities 323.18 414.15 342.64
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 125.58 263.23 278.75
Zin Lacs
Deferred tax liabilities (net) As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1,2016
Deferred tax liability
a) Depreciation and amortisation 323.18 414.15 342.64
Gross deferred tax liability 323.18 414.15 342.64
Deferred tax asset
a) Provision towards employee benefits 66.64 57.50 63.89
b) Provision for doubtful debts 52.42 14.88 -
¢) Mat credit entitlement 78.54 78.54 -
Gross deferred tax asset 197.60 150.92 63.89
Net deferred tax liability 125.58 263.23 278.75
18. Current borrowings
ZinLacs
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
Secured - at amortised cost
Loans repayable on demand
Cash credit from banks (Refer Note (i) below) 3,584.07 3,672.08 4,135.04
Total 3,584.07 3,672.08 4,135.04

(i) Cash credit from banks:

a) It carries interest rate @ 8.5% - 10.60 % p.a (for March 31, 2018, March 31, 2017 and April 01, 2016), are repayable on demand

Cash credit form bank is secured

b) by way of first paripassu charge, on hypothecation of company's entire current assets including stocks of raw material,
semi finished goods and finished goods, consumable stores and spares and such other movables, book debts, bills whether
documentary or clean, outstanding monies, receivables, both present and future,

c) by way of second paripassu charge, on hypothecation of all the plant and machinery at the company's existing plant at
Belavadi Industrial Area, Hebbal Industrial Area, Mysore and Company's registered Office and Company Flat at Bangalore,

d) by way of second paripassu charge, on equitable mortgage of Land and Building at Belavadi Industrial Area and Hebbal

Industrial area, Mysore, Company's registered Office and Company Flat at Bangalore,

e) further secured by personal guarantee of the Managing Director for the entire loan amount.
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19. Trade payables

Zin Lacs
As at As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
Dues to enterprises covered under MSMED Act, 2006 - 50.35 358.51
(Refer Note 36)
Others 2,306.40 912.07 522.76
Total 2,306.40 962.42 881.27
20. Other financial liabilities
ZinLacs
As at As at As at
WET e Wy LREY  March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
Current maturities of long term debts 451.69 375.53 217.70
Unpaid dividend 10.55 9.09 9.15
Others
Dealer deposits 1.20 1.40 0.45
Rental deposits 3.50 3.50 1.50
Total 466.94 389.52 228.80
21. Other current liabilities
Zin Lacs
As at As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
Statutory dues 45.37 133.82 91.14
Total 45.37 133.82 91.14
22. Revenue from operations
Zin Lacs

Sale of products (Refer Note i)
Other operating Income

Total

For the year ended
March 31, 2018

For the year ended
March 31, 2017

18,646.19 18,677.86
4,003.62 2,036.93
22,649.81 20,714.79

i) Postimplementation of Goods & Service Tax (GST) with effect from July 1, 2017, revenue from operations is disclosed net of GST.
Revenue from operations for the earlier periods include excise duty which is now subsumed in the GST. Revenue from operations
for the current financial year ended March 31, 2018 includes excise duty up to June 30, 2017. Accordingly, revenue from operations

for the current year and the previous year are not comparable.
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23. Other income

Zin Lacs
For the year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
a) Interest income
Other financial assets carried at amortised cost 3.97 9.09
b) Dividend income
Dividend from equity instruments 0.19 0.25
c) Other non-operating income
Investment property rental income 4.03 4.20
Export incentives 7.05 11.66
Others 2.93 -
d) Other gains and losses
Net foreign exchange gains 164.86 177.84
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 0.43 1.10
Net gain on derecognition of financial liabilities measured at amortised cost (Refer 0.21 -
note (i) below)
Net gain on financial assets mandatorily carried at fair value through profit or loss 7.13 14.48
(Refer note (ii) below)
Total 190.80 218.62
Notes:
(i) Net gain on derecognition of financial liabilities measured at amortised cost is due to written back of creditors balance
(ii) The amount represents the gain on equity instruments which are mandatorily measured at fair value
24. Cost of material consumed
Zin Lacs
For the year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Opening stock 1,040.86 827.55
Add: Purchases during the year 14,219.71 11,241.02
Less: Closing stock 969.55 1,040.86
Total 14,291.02 11,027.71
25. Change in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress
Zin Lacs
For the year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Inventories at the end of the year
Work-in-progress 1,241.74 747.80
Finished goods 560.48 476.66
1,802.22 1,224.46
Inventories at the beginning of the year
Work-in-progress 747.80 592.30
Finished goods 476.66 476.44
1,224.46 1,068.74
Total (577.76) (155.72)
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26. Excise duty on sale of goods

ZinLacs
SR RTEETRENG LR For the year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Excise duty on sale of goods 570.84 2,027.04
27. Employee benefits expense
ZinLacs
SR RTEETRENGEGR  For the year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Salaries, wages and bonus 2,665.90 2,294.36
Contribution to provident and other funds 113.66 106.26
Staff welfare expenses 163.40 188.28
Total 2,942.96 2,588.90
28. Depreciation and amortization expense
ZinLacs
IR RTEETRENG LR For the year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Depreciation of Tangible assets 1,026.81 980.26
Amortization of Intangible assets 20.21 10.04
Depreciation on Investment properties 0.84 0.84
Total 1,047.86 991.14
29. Finance costs
ZinLacs
SR ERTEETRENG LR For the year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Interest on cash credit and term loans 456.73 463.01
Interest on loans from related party (Refer note 38) 39.54 31.87
Total 496.27 494.88
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30. Revenue from operations

For the year ended
March 31, 2018

ZinLacs

For the year ended
March 31,2017

Electricity and water charges 492.42 437.24
Job work charges 179.06 202.03
Transportation charges 64.38 61.02
Rent (Refer Note 33) 17.35 12.82
Rates and taxes 8.16 19.73
Insurance 41.85 31.99
Repairs and maintenance
Plant and Machinery 34.90 11.35
Buildings 36.87 37.88
Vehicle 4.34 3.96
Others 73.10 53.40
Advertising and sales promotion 53.74 80.66
Travelling and conveyance 107.88 80.86
Communication costs 25.87 26.77
Printing and stationery 28.11 29.58
Legal and professional fees 153.84 122.89
Directors' sitting fees 8.75 8.50
Directors' commission 12.21 11.69
Payment to statutory auditor (Refer note below) 13.00 9.05
Watch and ward 55.91 52.65
Packing and forwarding 518.46 498.72
Stores and spares consumed 881.05 793.38
Donation 1.50 1.06
CSR expenditure (Refer note 37) 19.21 14.94
Loss arising on financial assets carrying at amortised cost 135.00 45.00
Loss arising on derecognition of financial assets 107.82 125.20
Loss on assets writen off 17.81 -
Provision for diminution in investments 0.09 -
Miscellaneous expenses 94.87 102.88
Total 3,187.56 2,875.25
Note
ZinLacs
Payment to statutory auditor For the year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
As Auditor:
- Statutory audit fee 13.00 8.00
- Reimbursement of expenses - 1.05
Total 13.00 9.05
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31. Tax expenses

Particulars

a) Current income tax

Zin Lacs

March 31, 2017

SR RTEETRENG LR For the year ended
March 31, 2018

In respect of current year 369.91 219.50
b) Deferred tax
In respect of current year (141.76) (3.44)
Total 228.15 216.06
c¢) Tax reconciliation
ZinLacs

Particulars

R GERTETENGEGR  For the year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Profit before tax as per statement of profit and loss 881.86 1,084.21
Income tax calculated at 34.61% 305.19 375.22
Effect of 35 (2AB) claim for Revenue expenses (41.53) (72.117)
Effect of 35 (2AB) claim for Capital expenses (33.18) (84.03)
Adjustments for fixed assets written off 6.16 -
Disallowance of CSR expenses 6.65 -
Effect on deferred tax balances due to the change in income tax from 34.61% to 29.12% (14.44) -
Others (0.77) (3.02)
Income tax recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss 228.15 216.06
d) Significant components of net deferred tax assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2018 are as follows
ZinLacs
Particulars Opening Recognised in Recognised in other Closing
balance Profit and Loss comprehensive income balance
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) in relation to
a) Depreciation and amortization (414.15) 90.97 - (323.18)
b) Provision for employee benefits 57.50 13.25 (4.40) 66.64
¢) Provision for doubtful debts 14.88 37.54 - 52.42
d) MAT credit entitlement 78.54 - - 78.54
Total (263.23) 141.76 (4.40) (125.58)
Significant components of net deferred tax assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2017 are as follows
ZinLacs
Particulars Opening Recognised in Recognised in other Closing
balance Profit and Loss comprehensive income balance
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) in relation to
a) Depreciation and amortization (342.64) (71.57) - (414.15)
b) Provision for employee benefits 63.89 (18.47) 13.00 57.50
¢) Provision for doubtful debts - 14.88 - 14.88
d) MAT credit entitlement - 78.54 - 78.54
Total (278.75) 3.44 13.00 (263.23)
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Significant components of net deferred tax assets and liabilities as at April 1, 2016 are as follows

ZinLacs
Particulars Balance
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) in relation to
a) Depreciation and amortization (342.64)
b) Provision for employee benefits 63.89
Total (278.75)
32. Earnings per share (EPS)
Zin Lacs
For the year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Profit attributable to equity share holders (Rs. in lakhs) 653.72 868.15
Weighted average number of shares outstanding (Numbers in lakhs) 9.90 9.90
Nominal value of shares (Rs.) 10 10
Basic and Diluted earnings per share (Rs.) 66.03 87.69

33. Leases
Operating lease arrangements
The Company has certain operating leases for office facilities (cancellable leases) with lease term between 1 and 5 years. Such
leases are generally with the option of renewal against increased rent and premature termination of agreement. Rental expenses
of Rs. 17.35 lakhs (previous year: Rs.12.82 Lakhs) in respect of obligation under operating leases have been recognised in the
statement of profit and loss. The Company does not have any non-cancellable leases as at March 31, 2018, hence the disclosure
of the non-cancellable leases is not provided.

34. Contingent liabilities
%in Lacs

Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1,2016

a) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt

i. Disputed income tax demands, pending in appeal 23.27 23.27 23.27
b) Guarantees excluding financial guarantees

i. Bank guarantee 27.00 27.00 81.00

ii. Letter of credit outstanding 874.54 627.81 525.98
Total 924.81 678.08 630.26

Note: (i) Contingent liabilities disclosed above represent possible obligations where possibility of cash outflow to settle the obligations
is not remote.

35. Commitments

Zin Lacs
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1,2016

Other commitments
Commitments for acquisition of property, plant and equipment 453.49 323.95 264.93
Total 453.49 323.95 264.93
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36. Disclosures required under Section 22 of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
Based on the information available with the company, there are no Micro, Small and Medium enterprises to which the company
owes dues, which are outstanding for more than 45 days as at March 31, 2018. Further, no interest during the year has been paid
or payable under the terms of the MSMED Act 2006.

Zin Lacs
Particulars IR GERTETRNGELE  For the year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at - 50.35
the end of accounting year;
The amount of interest paid by the buyer under the Act along with the amounts of the - -
payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year;
The amount of interest due and payable for the year (where the principal has been paid but - -
interest under the Act not paid);
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of accounting year; and - -
"The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding vyear, - -
until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small
enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under
section 23.
37. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
ZinLacs
Particulars IO RTEETRN GG For the year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Gross amount required to be spent by the Company as per Section 135 of the Act 19.21 14.94
Amount spent during the year 19.21 14.94

38. Related party disclosures
The Company material related party transactions and outstanding balances are with the Key managerial personnel and directors.

A) Related parties with relationships

Names of the related party Description of the relationship
Aditya M. Gokran Key management personnel (KMP)
Shrikant Kamalakant Welling Director

Anuradha M. Gokran Director

Bhaskar Ramachandra Pai Director

Tamhant Jain Director

Srikanth Shenoy Key management personnel (KMP)
Apoorva G Key management personnel (KMP)
V Sridhar Key management personnel (KMP)
M/s Suvardhan, Bangalore partnership firm Key managerial personnel has significant influence
Notes:

i) The above information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information provided
by the company, which has been relied upon by the auditors

i) There are no amounts written-off/written back or provided for during the year in respect of debts due from/to related
parties.
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B) Related party transactions and balances outstanding
Related party transactions during the year ended March 31, 2018 and balances outstanding as at March 31,2018
ZinLacs
Nature of transactions KMP Director KMP having significant
influence
Purchase of goods & services
Interest paid - 39.54 -
Sitting fee - 8.75 -
Commission paid - 12.13 -
Managerial remuneration
Short-term benefits 132.30 - -
Balance outstanding
Payable
Loan - 440.00 -
Related party transactions during the year ended March 31, 2017 and balances outstanding as at March 31, 2017
ZinLacs
Nature of transactions KMP Director KMP having significant
influence
Purchase of goods & services 17.07
Interest paid 0.24 42.50 -
Sitting fee - 8.50 -
Commission paid - 11.69 -
Managerial remuneration
Short-term benefits 116.58 - -
Balance outstanding
Payable
Loan - 415.00 -
Related party transactions during the year ended April 1, 2016 and balances outstanding as at April 1, 2016
Zin Lacs
Nature of transactions KMP Director KMP having significant
influence
Purchase of goods & services 36.13
Interest paid 1.10 40.82 -
Sitting fee - 3.90 -
Commission paid - 9.64 -
Managerial remuneration
Short-term benefits 93.75 - -
Balance outstanding
Payable
Loan 10.00 390.00 -
Trade payable - - 3.89
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39. Financial instruments
A) Capital management

The Company's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to
sustain future development of the business. The Company monitors the return on capital as well as the level of dividends on its
equity shares. The Company's objective when managing capital is to maintain an optimal structure so as to maximize share-

holder value.

ZinlLacs

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1,2016

Total equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the company 7,067.89 6,582.06 5,882.13
As a percentage of total capital 56% 55% 51%
Current borrowings 4,035.76 4,047.61 4,352.74
Non-current borrowings 1,457.31 1,409.00 1,278.01
Total borrowings 5,493.07 5,456.61 5,630.75
As a percentage of total capital 44% 45% 49%
Total 12,560.96 12,038.67 11,512.88

The Company is predominantly equity financed which is evident from the capital structure table. Further, the Company has always been
a net cash Company with cash and bank balances along with investment which is predominantly investment in liquid being in excess
of debt.

B) Categories of financial instruments
The fair value of financial instruments by categories as at 31 March 2018, 31 March 2017 and 1 April 2016 is as follows:
%in Lacs
Carrying Value Fair Value

Particulars As at As at As at As at As at As at
(VETS M OR k] March 31, 2017 April 17,2016 BYETE EIBLRES March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016

Financial assets
Measured at amortised

cost

(a) Trade receivables 3,996.98 3,052.88 3,5623.22 3,996.98 3,052.88 3,5623.22
(b) Cash and cash 61.78 66.55 11.78 61.78 66.55 11.78
equivalents

(c) Loans 98.64 114.83 168.13 98.64 114.83 168.13
(d) Other financial 0.72 0.72 0.72 50.49 43.45 28.97
assets

Total 4,158.12 3,234.98 3,703.85 4,207.89 3,277.71 3,732.10

Financial liabilities
Measured at amortised

cost

(a) Trade payables 2,306.41 962.44 881.27 2,306.41 962.44 881.27
(b) Other financial 466.94 389.52 228.80 466.94 389.52 228.80
liabilities

(c) Loans 5,041.38 5,081.08 5,413.05 5,041.38 5,081.08 5,413.05
Total 7,814.73 6,433.04 6,523.12 7,814.73 6,433.04 6,523.12

The management assessed that fair value of cash and short-term deposits, trade receivables, trade payables and other current financial
assets and liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments. The fair value
of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction
between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.
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C)

Financial risk management

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. The Company's
primary focus is to foresee the unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its
financial performance. The primary market risk to the Company is foreign exchange risk. The Company has constituted a Risk
Management Committee, which is responsible for developing and monitoring the Company's risk management policies.

“The Company's financial risk management is supported by the finance department
- protect the Company's financial results and position from financial risks
- maintain market risks within acceptable parameters, while optimising returns; and
- protect the Company's financial investments, while maximising returns.”

Management of credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company arising from counter party failure to meet its contractual obligations. Credit
risk encompasses of both, the direct risk ofdefault and the risk of deterioration of creditworthiness as well as concentration of
risks. Credit risk is controlled by analysing credit limits and creditworthiness of customers on a continuous basis to whom the
credit has been granted after necessary approvals for credit.

“Trade receivables

The Company assess the customers credit quality by taking into account their financial position, past experience and other
factors. The Company's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The
demographics of the customer, including the default risk of the industry and country in which the customer operates, also has
an influence on credit risk assessment.”

ZinLacs

Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016

Revenue from top 5 customers 9,024.47 9,233.39 -
Revenue from top customer 4,037.54 3,444.67 -
Receivable from top 5 customers 1,650.45 1,545.09 1,388.68
Receivable from top customer 519.35 648.27 602.76

Geographic concentration of credit risk
The Company has geographic concentration of trade receivables, net of allowances as given below:

ZinLacs

Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016

India

3,767.95 2,794.15 3,198.04

Rest of the world 229.03 258.73 325.18

Geographic concentration of the credit risk is allocated based on the location of the customers

i)

Management of liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The Company's
approach to managing liquidity is to ensure that it will have sufficient funds to meet its liabilities when due without incurring
unacceptable losses. In doing this, management considers both normal and stressed conditions. A material and sustained
shortfall in our cash flow could undermine the Company's credit rating and impair investor confidence. The Company's corporate
treasury department is responsible for liquidity, funding as well as settlement management. In addition, processes and policies
related to such risks are overseen by senior management.
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The following table shows the maturity analysis of the Company's financial liabilities based on contractually agreed undiscounted
cash flows:

ZinLacs

Particulars As at Less than 1-3 Years 3-5 Years Total
March 31, 2018 1 year

Borrowings 5,041.37 3,584.07 1,197.56 259.75 5,041.38

Trade payables 2,306.40 2,306.40 - - 2,306.40

Other financial liabilities 466.94 466.94 - - 466.94

Particulars As at Less than 1-3 Years 3-5 Years Total
March 31, 2017 1 year

Borrowings 5,081.08 3,672.08 1,118.39 290.61 5,081.08

Trade payables 962.42 962.42 - - 962.42

Other financial liabilities 389.52 389.52 - - 389.52

Particulars As at Less than 1-3 Years 3-5 Years Total
March 31, 2016 1 year

Borrowings 5,413.05 4,135.04 852.01 426.00 5,413.05

Trade payables 881.27 881.27 - - 881.27

Other financial liabilities 228.80 228.80 - - 228.80

ili) Management of market risk

The Company's size and operations result in it being exposed to the following market risks that arise from its use of financial
instruments:

« interest rate risk

« commodity price risk

« currency risk

The above risks may affect the Company's income and expenses, or the value of its financial instruments. The objective of the
Company's management of market risk is to maintain this risk within acceptable parameters, while optimising returns. The
Company's exposure to, and management of, these risks is explained below:

ZinLacs

MANAGEMENT POLICY POTENTIAL IMPACT OF RISK SENSITIVITY TO RISK

(i) Interest rate risk
The Company is not exposed to interest | The Company's fixed rate borrowings | The Company is not exposed to interest
rate risk because it borrows funds at only | are carried at amortised cost. They are | Risk

fixed interest rate in INR. therefore not subject to interest rate risk
as defined in Ind AS 107, since neither
the carrying amount nor the future cash
flows will fluctuate because of a change
in market interest rates.
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MANAGEMENT POLICY

POTENTIAL IMPACT OF RISK

SENSITIVITY TO RISK

(ii) Price risk

Major raw material purchase is from
international market and less dependency
on domestic market. The prices of the
Company's raw materials generally
fluctuate in line with commodity
cycles.

The objective of the Company is to
minimise the impact of raw material cost
fluctuations. Centralised procurement
team evaluate and manage through
operating procedures and sourcing
policies.

The prices of the Company's raw materials
generally fluctuate in line with commodity
cycles. Hence sensitivity analysis is not
done

(iii) Currency risk

The Company's exchange risk arises from
its foreign operations, foreign currency
revenues and expenses. A significant
portion of the Company's costs are in
the foreign currencies, while a significant
portion of its revenue is in Indian
rupees

Considering the countries and economic
environment in which the Company
operates, its operations are subject
to risks arising from fluctuations in
exchange rates in those countries. The
risks primarily relate to fluctuations in US
Dollar, Euro and JPY against the functional
currency of the Company. As a result, if
the value of the Indian rupee appreciates
relative to these foreign currencies, the
Company's profits measured in rupees
may increase. The exchange rate between
the Indian rupee and these foreign
currencies has changed substantially
in recent periods and may continue to
fluctuate substantially in the future. The
Company has risk management team and
treasury team who will monitor and reduce
the risk due to exchange fluctuation.

If the exchange rate increases by 1%
impact on buyers credit will increase by
Rs 4lakhs, On debtors the benefit will
increase by Rs 3lakhs

The following table sets forth information relating to foreign currency exposures as at March 31, 2018, March 31,2017 and April 1,2016

Zin Lacs
usD EURO Others Total
Total financial assets 325.09 179.46 1.16 505.71
Total financial liabilities 1,296.34 29.30 - 1,325.64
usD EURO Others Total
Total financial assets 265.02 - 1.42 266.44
Total financial liabilities 1,431.65 1.25 - 1,432.90
UsD EURO Others Total
Total financial assets 334.10 - - 334.10
Total financial liabilities 1,066.94 9.23 - 1,076.17
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D) Fair value hierarchy
Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e.
as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices)

Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). Fair values
are determined in whole or in part using a valuation model based on assumptions that are neither supported by prices from
observable current market transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on available market data.

Zin Lacs

As at March 31, 2018 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets:

Investments 50.49 - - 50.49
Total 50.49 - - 50.49

As at March 31, 2017 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets:

Investments 43.45 0.09 - 43.54
Total 43.45 0.09 - 43.54

As at March 31, 2016 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets:

Investments 28.97 0.09 - 29.06
Total 28.97 0.09 - 29.06

40. Employee benefits

(@) Defined contribution plan

The Company's contribution to Provident Fund aggregating ¥ 113.66 lakhs (March 31, 2017: Rs. 106.26 lakhs) has been
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss under the head Employee benefits expense.

(b) Defined benefit plans:
Gratuity
The Gratuity scheme is a final salary defined benefit plan, that provides for a lumpsum payment at the time of separation; based
on scheme rules the benefits are calculated on the basis of last drawn salary and the period of service at the time of separation
and paid as lumpsum. There is a vesting period of 5 years.

These plans typically expose the company to actuarial risks such as:

0] Investment risk: The fund is managed by LIC, fund manager. So,the details of composition of plan assets managed by the fund
manager is not available with the company. However, the fall in plan assets will increase the defined benefit obligation.

(i)  Interestrates risk: the defined benefit obligation calculated uses a discount rate based on government bonds. If bond yields fall,
the defined benefit obligation will tend to increase.

(iiiy  Salary inflation risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan
participants. As such, increase in salary will increase the defined benefit obligation.

(iv)  Demographic risks: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the
mortality of plan participants both during and after their employment. As the increase in life expectancy of the plan participants
will increase the plan's liability.

In respect of the plan, the most recent actuarial valuation of plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation
were carried as at March 31,2018, March 31,2017 and April 1,2016 by M/s. Armstrong International Employee Benefits Solution,
Mr. Srinivasan Nagasubramanian, Fellow of the Institute of Actuaries of India. The present value of the defined benefit obligation,
and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the projected unit credit method.
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Amount recognised in statement of profit and loss
Zin Lacs
Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Amounts recognised in comprehensive income in respect of these defined benefit plans

are as follows:
Service cost

Current service cost 28.85 36.25
Net interest expense 10.44 8.89
Immediate recognition of (gain)/losses-Other long term benefits - -
39.29 45.14
Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of these defined benefit
plans are as follows:
Return on plan assets (excluding amount included in net interest expense) 3.40 3.97
Actuarial gains and loss arising from changes in financial assumptions in DBO (9.29) 11.67
Actuarial gains and loss arising form experience adjustments in DBO (9.24) 22.56
Actuarial gains and loss arising from changes in Demographic assumptions in DBO - -
Amortisation actuarial loss/(gain) - -
(15.12) 38.20
Total 24.16 83.34
Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet ZinLacs
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Present value of defined benefit obligation 466.20 450.54 368.67
Fair value of plan assets 324.44 297.06 196.54
141.76 153.48 172.13
Current portion of the above 36.56 45.97 40.97
Non current portion of the above 105.20 107.51 131.16
Movement in present value of defined benefit obligation are as follows: ZinLacs
Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Opening defined obligation 450.54 368.67
Expenses recognised in Profit and Loss Account
- Current service cost 28.85 36.25
- Interest expense (income) 33.60 26.51
Recognised in other comprehensive income
Remeasurement gains / (losses)
- Actuarial gain (loss) arising from:
i. Demographic assumptions - -
ii. Financial assumptions (9.29) 11.67
iii. Experience adjustments (9.24) 22.56
Benefit payments (28.27) (15.12)
Closing defined obligation 466.20 450.54
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Movement in fair value of the plan assets is as follows: ZinLacs
Particulars For the year ended

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Opening fair value of plan assets 297.06 196.54

Expenses recognised in Profit and Loss Account

- Expected return on plan assets 23.17 17.62
Recognised in other comprehensive income

Remeasurement gains / (losses)

- Actual return on plan assets in excess of the expected return (3.40) (3.97)
Contributions by employer (including benefit payments recoverable) 35.88 102.00
Benefit payments (28.27) (15.13)
Closing fair value of plan assets 324.44 297.06

i) The Major categories of plan assets

Assets under insurance schemes 100% 100% 100%
j) Actuarial assumptions

1. Discount rate 7.70% 7.34% 7.80%
2. Expected rate of return on plan assets 7.70% 7.34% 8%
3. Salary escalation 9% 9% 9%
4. Attrition rate 5% 5% 5%
5. Retirement age 58 58 58
5. Mortality rate As per IALM (2006-08) ultimate

Sensitivity analysis:

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate, salary escalation and attrition rate.
The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring
at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

-If the discount rate increases (decreases) by 1%, the defined benefit obligation would be decreased by Rs. 442.21 lakhs (increased by
Rs. 492.95 lakhs) as at March 31,2018

-If the expected salary escalation increases (decrease) by 1%, the defined benefit obligation would be increases by Rs. 490.72 lakhs
(decreases by Rs. 443.27 lakhs) as at March 31,2018

-If the attrition rate increases (decreases) by 1%, the defined benefit obligation would be decreased by Rs.463.27 lakhs (increases by
Rs.469.40 lakhs) as at March 31,2018

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is
unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated using
the projected unit credit method under which If an employee's service in later years will lead to a materially higher level of benefit than
in earlier years, these benefits are attributed on a straight-line basis.

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years, except that base
rates have changed

There has been no change in the process used by the Company to manage its risks from prior periods.
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Expected future Cash outflows towards the plan are as follows

Particulars ZinLacs
2018-19 51.84
2019-20 62.87
2020-21 43.56
2021-22 51.52
2022-23 39.14
2023-24 to0 2028- 29 129.48
Payouts Above Ten Years 87.78
Total 466.20
41. First-time adoption of Ind AS

A1l
(@)

A2
(@)

(b)

The accounting policies set out in Note 2 have been applied in preparing the financial statements for the year ended March 31,
2018 and the comparative information presented in these financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017 and in the
preparation of opening Ind AS balance sheet at April 1, 2016 (transition date). In preparing its opening Ind AS balance sheet,
the company has adjusted the amounts reported in financial statements prepared in accordance with the accounting standards
notified under Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended) and other relevant provisions of the Act (“Previous
GAAP") and an explanation of how the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS has affected the company's financial position,
financial performance and cash flows is presented in the form of reconciliations below.

Exemptions and exceptions availed

Set out below are the applicable Ind AS 101 optional exemptions and mandatory exceptions applied in the transition from
previous GAAP to Ind AS.

Ind AS optional exemptions
Deemed cost for property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Ind AS 101 permits a first-time adopter to elect to continue with the carrying value for all of its property, plant and equipment as
recognised in the financial statements as at the date of transition to Ind AS, measured as per the previous GAAP and use that as
its deemed cost as at the date of transition after making necessary adjustments for decommissioning liabilities. This exemption
can also be used for intangible assets covered by Ind AS 38 Intangible Assets and investment property covered by Ind AS 40.
Accordingly, the company has elected to measure all of its property, plant and equipment, investment property and intangible
assets at their Previous GAAP carrying value.

Ind AS mandatory exceptions
Estimates

An entity's estimates in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition to Ind AS shall be consistent with estimates made for
the same date in accordance with previous GAAP (after adjustments to reflect any difference in accounting policies), unless
there is objective evidence that those estimates were in error. Ind AS estimates as at April 1, 2016 are consistent with the
estimates as at the same date made in conformity with Previous GAAP.

Classification and measurement of financial assets

Ind AS 101 requires an entity to assess classification and measurement of financial assets on the basis of the facts and
circumstances that exist at the date of transition to Ind AS. Accordingly, classification and measurement of the financial assets

has been based on the facts and circumstances that exist at the date of transition to Ind AS.
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Total comprehensive income reconciliation

ZinLacs
Particulars For the year ended
March 31,2017
Profit after tax as reported under the previous GAAP 828.47
Fair valuation of investments (Refer Note 1 below) 14.48
Actuarial (gain)/loss on employee defined benefit plans recognised in other Comprehensive Income 38.20
(Refer Note 3 below)
Tax impact on the above ( Refer Note 3 below) (13.00)
Profit after tax as per Ind AS
Other comprehensive income 25.20
Total comprehensive income 842.95
Equity reconciliation
Zin Lacs
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2017 March 31, 2016
Total equity (shareholder's funds) as per previous GAAP 6,539.35 5,710.90
Proposed dividend (Refer Note 2 below) - 118.80
Tax impact on proposed dividend (Refer Note 2 below) - 24.19
Fair valuation of investments (Refer Note 1 below) 42.72 28.24
Total comprehensive income 6,582.07 5,882.13
Notes:
1 Under Ind AS, Investments are fair valued at each reporting date with changes in fair value recognized in the statement of profit

and loss. Under Previous GAAP, they are measured at lower of cost or net realisable value. Consequently, increase in fair value
of such investments in equity instruments has resulted in a gain.

2 Under Ind AS, liability for dividend is recognized in the period in which the obligation to pay is established. Under previous
GAARP, a liability is recognized in the period to which the dividend relates, even though the dividend may be approved by the
shareholders subsequent to the reporting date. Consequently, dividend payable under Ind AS is lower and retained earning is
higher.

3 Under Ind AS, the actuarial gains and losses form part of remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability/asset which is
recognised in other comprehensive income whereas in Previous GAAP, actuarial gains and losses were recognised in the
statement profit and loss. Consequently, the tax effect of the same has also been recognised in other comprehensive income
under Ind AS instead of statement of profit and loss.

42  This being the first year of presentation of financial statements under Ind AS , the balance for the prior periods has been
regrouped/ reclassified to confirm with the current year groupings / classifications.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors Triton Valves Limited

S. K. Welling Aditya M. Gokarn
Chairman Managing Director
DIN: 00050943 DIN: 00185458
Srikanth Shenoy Apoorva. G

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Membership No.32683
Place: Bangalore
Date: May 4, 2018
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